
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Washoe County District Board of Health 

Date and Time of Meeting:   Thursday, January 22, 2015, 1:00 p.m. 
 

Place of Meeting:     Washoe County Health District 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B 
South Auditorium 
Reno, Nevada  89512 

All items numbered or lettered below are hereby designated for possible action as if the words “for possible action” 
were written next to each item (NRS 241.020). An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for which no 
action will be taken. 
Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

1:00 
p.m.  
*1. 

Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Invitation 

Ms. Kitty Jung 

*2. Roll Call 
 

Ms. Dawn Spinola 

*3. Public Comment  
Limited to three (3) minutes per person.  No action may be taken. 
 

Ms. Kitty Jung 

*4. Introduction of New Board Members 
 

Ms. Kitty Jung 

5. Approval of Agenda  
January 22, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

Ms. Kitty Jung 

6. Approval of Draft Minutes  
December 18, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 

Ms. Kitty Jung 

*7. Recognitions  
A. Years of Service  

1. Irene Ramos-Hernandez, 20 years, hired 12/5/1994 – CCHS  
2. Jessica Cabrales 10 yrs of service, hired 1/3/2005 – CCHS 

Mr. Kevin Dick 
Ms. Kitty Jung 

 
 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada 89512 

P.O. Box 11130, Reno, Nevada  89520 
Telephone   775.328-2400 • Fax   775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health 

Kevin Dick 
District Health Officer 

 
Leslie Admirand 

Deputy District Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Kitty Jung, Chair 
Julia Ratti, Vice Chair 

Neoma Jardon 
George Hess, MD 
David Silverman 

John Novak, DMD 
Michael D. Brown 

 
 
 

 



Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

3. Rebecca Koster 15 yrs of service, hired 1/10/2000 - CCHS 
B. New Hires 

1. Charlie Gray – Environmental Health Specialist Trainee 1, 
hired 1/5/15 - CCHS 

C. Recognition of Achievement 
1. Nicole Alberti - completed the Chamber’s 2014 Leadership 

Reno Sparks Program 
D. Board Retirements 

1. Dr. Denis Humphreys, member since 12/18/02, Chair from 
1/22/09 through 12/16/10 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

8. Proclamations 
A. National Radon Action Month 
B. National Heart Month 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 
Ms. Kitty Jung 

9. Consent Agenda  
Matters which the District Board of Health may consider in one 
motion.  Any exceptions to the Consent Agenda must be stated 
prior to approval. 

A. Air Quality Management Cases 
1. Recommendation to Uphold Citations Not Appealed to the 

Air Pollution Control Hearing Board: 

a. Alston Construction – NOV No. 5293, Case No. 1169 
b. F&P Construction – NOV No. 5294, Case No. 1168 
c. NITU Arlington Gas – NOV No. 5455, Case No. 1170 

B. Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements  
1. Approval of a pilot program to allow open burning within 

the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District jurisdiction 
outside of the Truckee Meadows Hydrographic Area from 
February 14 through 28, 2015. 

2. Approve the abolishment of one vacant Intermittent Hourly 
Licensed Engineer position (#70007454) 

3. Approval of Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada 
Department of Health and Human Services, Division of 
Public and Behavioral Health for the period January 1, 2015 
through December 31, 2015, in the amount of $317,061, in 
support of the HIV Prevention Grant Program, IO 10013 

 

 
 
 
 

Ms. Charlene Albee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Erin Dixon 
 

Ms. Patsy Buxton 



Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

*10. Introduction of Jim Begbie as the Consumer at Large District 
Board of Health Appointed Representative to the REMSA 
Board of Directors  

Ms. Christina Conti 

11. Introductions, interviews and possible selection and 
appointment of a candidate as the Member of the Accounting 
Profession District Board of Health Appointed Representative 
to the REMSA Board of Directors 

Ms. Christina Conti 

12. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority  
A. Review and Acceptance of the REMSA Operations Reports for 

November and December, 2014. 

*B. Update of REMSA’s Community Activities During November 
and December, 2014 

 

Mr. Jim Gubbels 
 
 
 
 
 

13. Presentation, discussion and possible approval of the Regional 
Emergency Medical Services Authority (REMSA) Franchise 
Compliance Report for the period of 7/1/2013 through 
6/30/2014 
 

Ms. Brittany Dayton 

14. Possible Reappointment of Dr. George Hess to the District 
Board of Health for a second term beginning January 2015 and 
ending December 2018 
 

Ms. Kitty Jung 

*15. Presentation of significant findings of the Washoe County 
Community Health Needs Assessment 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

16. Acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund Financial 
Review for Fiscal Year 2015 year to date December 31, 2014 
 

Ms. Anna Heenan 

17. Presentation and discussion of follow-up report regarding 
direction provided at the December 18, 2014 meeting with 
respect to benchmarking statistics and request for Board to 
direct staff to continue with or make adjustments to uniform 
methodology approved June 26, 2014. 
 

Ms. Anna Heenan 

18. Acceptance of the January 2015 Nevada legislative session 
report and providing input and/or direction as DBOH may feel 
is appropriate. 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

*19. Staff Reports and Program Updates 
A. Director, Air Quality Management  

 
 

Ms. Charlene Albee 



Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

2014 Year in Review; Divisional Update – Monthly Air Quality 
Index; Program Reports -- Monitoring & Planning and 
Permitting 

B. Director, Community and Clinical Health Services  
Divisional Update, Program Reports 

C. Director, Environmental Health Services  
Food, Land Development, UST/LUST, Vector-Borne Disease, 
and EHS Inspections / Permits / Plan Review 

D. Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness  
Communicable Disease, Public Health Preparedness, and 
Emergency Medical Services 

E. District Health Officer, Office of the District Health Officer  
Community Health Needs Assessment, Truckee Meadows 
Healthy Communities Conference, Fundamental Review, Other 
Events & Activities and Health District Media Contacts 
 

 
 

Mr. Steve Kutz 
 
 

Mr. Robert Sack 
 
 
 

Dr. Randall Todd 
 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

*20. Board Comment  
Limited to announcements or issues for future agendas. 
 

Ms. Kitty Jung 

21. Emergency Items 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

*22. Public Comment  
Limited to three (3) minutes per person.  No action may be taken. 
 

Ms. Kitty Jung 

23. Adjournment Ms. Kitty Jung 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Business Impact Statement:  A Business Impact Statement is available at the Washoe County Health District for those items 
denoted with a “$.” 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other items, withdrawn from the agenda,  moved to the agenda of 
another later meeting; moved to or from the Consent section, or they may be voted on in a block.  Items with a specific time 
designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later.  Items listed in the Consent section of the agenda are 
voted on as a block and will not be read or considered separately unless withdrawn from the Consent. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
The District Board of Health Meetings are accessible to the disabled.  Disabled members of the public who require special 
accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify Administrative Health Services in writing at the Washoe 
County Health District, PO Box 1130, Reno, NV 89520-0027, or by calling 775.328.2416, 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Time Limits:  Public comments are welcomed during the Public Comment periods for all matters whether listed on the agenda or 
not.  All comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person.  Additionally, public comment of three (3) minutes per person 
may be heard during individual action items on the agenda.  Persons are invited to submit comments in writing on the agenda 
items and/or attend and make comment on that item at the Board meeting.  Persons may not allocate unused time to other 
speakers. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 



Response to Public Comments: The Board of Health can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda 
properly posted prior to the meeting.  During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed on the 
published agenda.  The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comments by the Board of Health.  
However, responses from the Board members to unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without 
notice to the public.  On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Board of Health will 
consider, Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for Health 
District Staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda.  The Board of Health may do this either during the public 
comment item or during the following item:  “Board Comments – Limited to Announcement or Issues for future Agendas.”  
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations: 
 
Washoe County Health District, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV 
Reno City Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV   
Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV 
Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV 
Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health 
State of Nevada Website: https://notice.nv.gov 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

Supporting materials are available to the public at the Washoe County Health District located at 1001 E. 9th Street, in Reno, 
Nevada.  Ms. Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary to the District Board of Health is the person designated by the Washoe 
County District Board of Health to respond to requests for supporting materials.  Ms. Spinola is located at the Washoe County 
Health District and may be reached by telephone at (775) 328-2415 or by email at dspinola@washoecounty.us.  Supporting 
materials are also available at the Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health  pursuant to the 
requirements of NRS 241.020. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

http://www.washoecounty.us/health
https://notice.nv.gov/
mailto:dspinola@washoecounty.us
http://www.washoecounty.us/health


WASHOE COUNTY 
DISTRICT BOARD OF HEALTH 
MEETING MINUTES
Members Thursday, December 18, 2014 
Matt Smith, Chair 1:00 p.m. 
Kitty Jung, Vice Chair 
Dr. Denis Humphreys 
Neoma Jardon Washoe County Administration Complex 
Julia Ratti Health District South Conference Room 
Dr. George Hess 1001 East Ninth Street 
David Silverman Reno, NV 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

The Washoe County District Board of Health met in regular session on Thursday, December 
18, 2014, in the Health Department South Conference Room, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, 
Nevada.   

1. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance
Chair Smith called the meeting to order at 1:04 p.m.
Dr. Humphreys led the pledge to the flag.

______________________________________________________________________________ 

2. Roll Call
The following members and staff were present:

Members present: Chair Matt Smith
Vice Chair Kitty Jung  
Dr. Denis Humphreys 
Dr. George Hess 
Julia Ratti (arrived at 1:14 p.m.) 
David Silverman 
Neoma Jardon  

Members absent: None 

Staff present: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer, ODHO 
Leslie Admirand, Deputy District Attorney 
Jeff Whitesides, Manager, EPHP,  
Charlene Albee, Division Director, AQM 
Steve Kutz, Division Director, CCHS 
Bob Sack, Division Director, EHS 
Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer, AHS 
Christina Conti, EMS Program Manager, EPHP 
Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary/Recording Secretary, ODHO 

Post Office Box 11130, Reno, NV  89520-0027 – 1001 E. Ninth St., Reno, NV  89512 
Telephone:  775.328.2415 – Fax:  775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health/ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 6



3. Public Comment
Chair Smith opened the public comment period.

Alex Woodley, City of Reno Code Enforcement Manager, acknowledged, commended and
thanked the Environmental Health Services Division staff for their cooperation and 
professionalism during actions taken to ensure the basic quality and safety of local hotels and 
motels.   

Chair Smith closed the public comment period. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

4. Approval of Agenda
Dr. Humphreys moved to approve the agenda for the December 18, 2014, District

Board of Health meeting.  Mr. Silverman seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

5. Approval of Draft Minutes
Dr. Humphreys moved to approve the minutes of the November 20, 2014 District Board

of Health regular meeting as written.  Mr. Silverman seconded the motion which carried 
unanimously. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

6. Recognitions
Presented by Mr. Dick and Chair Smith

A. Years of Service

1. Dale Brice - 20 years, hired 12/6/1994 – CCHS

Mr. Kutz stated the division was very happy to have Mr. Brice on the team and Mr.
Kutz noted Mr. Brice has found ways to save the District substantial amounts of money over 
the years.    

2. Jeff Jeppson - 5 years, hired 12/7/2009 – EHS

Mr. Dick introduced and congratulated Mr. Jeppson.

B. New Hires 

1. Chantelle Batton - Environmental Health Specialist Trainee I, hired 12/1/14 – EHS

At Mr. Sack’s request, Ms. Batton provided a brief overview of her prior work
experience and stated she was happy to be with the District. 

2. Victoria Nicolson-Hornblower – Public Health Nurse I, Promoted to Full Time from
Intermittent Hourly 12/15/14 – CCHS

Mr. Kutz introduced Ms. Nicolson-Hornblower and stated the division was very happy
to have her as a full-time employee. 

3. Nicole Kleine – Public Health Nurse I, Promoted to Full Time from Intermittent
Hourly 12/15/14 – CCHS

December 18, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 2 of 17 



Mr. Kutz introduced Ms. Klein and explained she was most recently working with the 
UNR School of Nursing, so CCHS was glad to have her. 

C. Recognition of Achievements 

1. Ruth Castillo, Washoe County Excellence in Public Service Certificate

Mr. Dick introduced and congratulated Ms. Castillo.

2. Nicole Alberti, University of Minnesota Performance Improvement Certificate

Mr. Dick explained Nicole has been working with the Accreditation Readiness Team
(ART) and noted she had invested a significant amount of personal time in pursuing the 
certificate.   

D. Retirements 

1. Margot Jordan, 11/4/85 - 01/02/2015 – CCHS

Mr. Dick explained Ms. Jordan had led the ART team and more recently the QI Team,
in addition to handling her normal job functions.  He stated she would be missed and the 
District appreciates all of her contributions over the years.  He presented her with a 
commemorative clock.   

E. Board Retirements 

Mr. Dick explained two members were terming out.  Originally Mr. Smith’s replacement 
was to be selected in December, so he was being acknowledged for his service at this 
meeting.  Dr. Humphrey’s replacement is scheduled to be chosen in January, so the Board 
and the District request his presence at the January Board meeting so that he may be honored 
as well.   

1. Matt Smith, member since 1/22/03, Chair from 1/27/11 to 12/18/14

Mr. Dick reviewed Mr. Smith’s service with the Board and thanked him for the support
he has provided to him and the District.  Dr. Humphreys shared a bit of mutual history and 
congratulated Mr. Smith.  Councilmember Jardon congratulated him as well. 

Mr. Smith stated his true satisfaction and personal victory was in sticking to his 
commitment to the Board and the District.  It had provided him with a tremendous 
opportunity for personal growth.  He noted he had always worked with exceptional Board 
members and thanked them and the District staff.   

The audience congratulated him with a standing ovation. 

Mr. Dick presented Mr. Smith with a commemorative clock.   
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
7. Resolution

Nevada Breastfeeding Welcomed Here 
Nicole Alberti and Jan Houk accepted the resolution.  Ms. Alberti thanked the Board for 

pledging to support breastfeeding mothers and contributing to the health of the community.  

Councilmember Ratti moved to approve the resolution.  Commissioner Jung seconded 
the motion which was approved unanimously.   

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

December 18, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 3 of 17 



8. Consent Agenda
A. Air Quality Management Cases

1. Recommendation to Uphold Citations Not Appealed to the Air Pollution Control
Hearing Board:

a. Lennar Reno LLC – NOV No. 5436, Case No. 1167

A. Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements 
1. Ratification of Interlocal Agreement between the Washoe County Health District and

the University of Nevada School of Medicine Integrated Clinical Services, Inc. and
University of Nevada School of Medicine Multispecialty Group Practice North, Inc.
to provide medical director services for the Family Planning clinic in the total amount
of $9,000 per year for the period November 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 unless
extended by the mutual agreement of the Parties; ratification by the governing bodies
shall be a condition precedent to its entry into force; and if approved, authorize the
Chairman to execute the Interlocal Agreement; Authorization of travel and travel
reimbursements for non-County employee(s) to be determined by the School, in the
amount not to exceed $1,500.

2. Approval of Notice of Subgrant Award from the Division of Public and Behavioral
Health for the period October 1, 2014 to September 30, 2015 in the amount of
$1,062,144 in support of the Women, Infants and Children (WIC) Grant Program IO
10031; and if approved, authorize the Chairman to execute.

3. Approve amendments totaling an increase of $69,151 in both revenue and expense to
the FY15 Advancing Conformance with the Voluntary National Retail Food
Regulatory Grant Program (VNRFRPS), IO 11088.

Councilmember Ratti moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 
Councilmember Jardon seconded the motion which was approved unanimously.   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

9. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority
Presented by Mr. Jim Gubbels

A. Review and Acceptance of the REMSA Operations Reports for October, 2014.

Mr. Gubbels presented the report.  He noted the Board had received a separate handout 
with revised numbers and explained the automated system had missed five calls.  That had 
changed response numbers but not compliance numbers.   

He reported Priority One compliance in Zone A was 92 percent.  For Zones B, C and D, 
it was 98 percent.   

Average Priority One response times in minutes was 5:20 for Reno, 5:56 for Sparks and 
9:23 for Washoe County.  Average Priority Two response times in minutes was 5:46 for 
Reno, 6:57 for Sparks and 9:22 for Washoe County.   

Average bill for October was $1,067, bringing the year to date total to $1,069. 

December 18, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 4 of 17 



Councilmember Ratti requested year-to-date figures be added to the report.  Mr. Gubbels 
stated he could add that and suggested eliminating the system-wide response numbers.  
Councilmember Ratti opined those should remain.   

Mr. Gubbels noted he had passed out a report listing penalty fund expenditures and 
reviewed some of the details.  He explained that in the future he would report the 
expenditures to the Board as they occurred, instead of waiting until a full year had passed.   

Councilmember Jardon complimented REMSA on their food drive participation.  

Commissioner Jung moved to approve the report.  Dr. Humphreys seconded the motion 
which was approved unanimously.   

*B. Update of REMSA’s Community Activities during October, 2014

Mr. Gubbels reported REMSA had conducted a drill to practice transferring a suspected 
Ebola patient between hospitals and that it had been quite successful.  They had also 
conducted stroke drills with the hospital.   

REMSA staff members have generously donated gifts and time to the community for the 
holiday season.   

Mr. Gubbels thanked Chair Smith for his dedication, leadership and volunteerism.   
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

10. Discussion and possible reappointment of Jim Begbie as the Consumer-at-Large
District Board of Health Appointed Representative to the REMSA Board of Directors
and possible appointment of a Member of the Accounting Profession District Board of
Health Appointed Representative to the REMSA Board of Directors
Staff Representative: Ms. Conti

Ms. Conti introduced the staff report, noting five candidates had applied for the Member 
of the Accounting Profession (MAP) position on the Board.  Included in the report were 
summaries of her interviews with each of them, as well as their resumes and letters of 
interest.  Dr. Hess requested she provide an overview of each, which she did.  She noted the 
EMS Program staff had conducted an outreach at the recommendation of the Board which 
had yielded more candidates than they originally had. 

Commissioner Jung noted the individual is appointed to the REMSA Board but they do 
not report to the District Board of Health (DBOH).  Ms. Conti stated that was correct but 
opined that if the Board asked them to they would.  She reviewed the REMSA Board 
composition and noted DBOH is responsible for appointing three positions.  Mr. Gubbels 
elaborated for clarification and discussed member terms.   

Councilmember Ratti opined the original REMSA franchise had been a creative solution 
to serve the community and address the challenge of a competitive ambulance market. 
Additionally, governing agencies had created a private, charitable nonprofit; to serve the 
needs of the non-profit and the EMS needs of the community.   

Councilmember Ratti went on to opine a primary duty as an appointee was to be a trustee 
for the REMSA Board, but their secondary responsibility as an appointee of the DBOH was 
to be thoughtful about the needs of the community as a whole.  Therefore, she would like to 

December 18, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 5 of 17 



see a person appointed who understood both responsibilities.  She asked if any of the 
individuals that were interested in the position had demonstrated that understanding.   

Ms. Conti stated there were several candidates who did appreciate the community 
responsibility and the need for information sharing.  She had explained to the candidates that 
they would have a relationship with the DBOH.  Several of them felt as though it was an 
opportunity for change, to be more collaborative with and transparent to the citizens.   

Councilmember Ratti credited Mr. Gubbels for transparency achieved under his 
leadership.  She opined more steps could be taken, such as sharing the response information 
publicly.  She expressed her pleasure that there were five qualified candidates but stated she 
would not be able to decide between them without having a discussion with each of them.   

Commissioner Jung asked Ms. Conti if she agreed that Mr. Nelson appeared to have the 
highest level of interest in the type of transparency that Councilmember Ratti was speaking 
of.  Ms. Conti stated that was correct.  Councilmember Ratti noted Mr. Morgan had 
experience with public/private partnerships.  Ms. Conti added that Mr. Morgan had served on 
numerous boards and brings a wealth of knowledge and the ability to share new and tested 
ideas with the REMSA Board.   

Councilmember Jardon opined it was difficult to get a clear understanding of an 
individual without meeting with them face to face, so she did not feel comfortable endorsing 
or supporting any of the candidates unless that was possible.   

Mr. Silverman stated he had not heard Ms. Conti recommend any one candidate and she 
replied she had not.  He agreed the resume and the conversation with the candidate may 
reveal different things and suggested it would be easier for Ms. Conti to arrive at a 
recommendation than for the Board members to interview the candidates individually.   

Mr. Dick noted the staff and Board had not gone through this process in some time.  He 
and Ms. Conti had discussed the best method for presenting the candidates and had been 
reluctant to make a recommendation because it was an important decision for the Board. 
There may be other options, such as having the Board interview the candidates during a 
meeting or selecting specific Board members to meet with the candidates and come back 
with a recommendation.   

Chair Smith pointed out the interviews would need to be conducted in a public setting. 
Councilmember Ratti asked if a subcommittee could be created and Deputy District Attorney 
(DDA) Admirand stated the item was not agendized for that.  If that route were pursued the 
selection would be pushed out more than a month.  Councilmember Ratti suggested they 
schedule brief interviews to be held at the next Board meeting.   

DDA Admirand clarified the Board could vote on the reappointment and continue the 
new appointment so the interviews could be conducted at the next meeting.   

Mr. Dick opened the discussion regarding the reappointment of Mr. Begbie, noting he 
was the current At-Large DBOH appointee and was currently the chair of the REMSA 
Board.  He has acted as Interim District Health Officer (DHO) on several occasions.  Mr. 
Dick opined that since Mr. Begbie had assumed the chair, changes were occurring which are 
complementary to some of the changes Mr. Gubbels has been making since becoming CEO. 
He recommended Mr. Begbie remain. 

December 18, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 6 of 17 



Commissioner Jung asked what the length of the term would be and Mr. Dick replied it 
would be three years.  Commissioner Jung pointed out it would be three more years before 
the Board could decide who their consumer advocate would be.  Mr. Dick clarified staff had 
not recruited for the position as Mr. Begbie was currently seated and was willing to serve an 
additional term.  If the Board decides recruitment is warranted, staff will conduct that.  

Commissioner Jung noted Mr. Begbie has never reported to or contacted the Board, so 
they do not know what his qualifications are.  She expressed concern with reappointing 
someone who may not be the right person for the position.  Dr. Hess noted Mr. Begbie had 
originally been appointed by the DBOH.  Commissioner Jung pointed out the parameters and 
obligations were different now that there was a new franchise agreement in place.   

Dr. Humphreys suggested they acknowledge what Mr. Begbie has accomplished on the 
REMSA Board.  He opined Mr. Begbie’s past experience with the Health District speaks for 
itself.  He acknowledged Commissioner Jung’s points, and stated he felt comfortable 
proceeding with the reappointment.   

Councilmember Ratti pointed out that although Mr. Begbie had never come before the 
Board, he had never been invited to.  She acknowledged the situation was completely 
different now.  Based on that, rather than just automatically appointing Mr. Begbie without 
any consideration, but short of going out for a full recruitment, perhaps he could be invited to 
participate during the interviews.  That would set the tone that the Board wants to hear more 
from its representatives.   

Councilmember Jardon agreed with that course of action and asked if a time delay would 
cause problems with the term.  Mr. Gubbels noted Mr. Begbie had been involved in the 
reinstated franchise.  He reminded the members that Mr. Dick serves on the REMSA Board 
and is aware of the actions of the three Board-appointed members.  He suggested the 
REMSA Board was being treated differently than the Air Quality Board which was also a 
subcommittee of the DBOH.   

Ms. Conti went back to Councilmember Jardon’s question, explaining the members serve 
until a replacement is appointed, so if there was no action it would not cause an impact.  Mr. 
Gubbels acknowledged that was correct.  He pointed out that if the Board had asked, Mr. 
Begbie would have attended the meeting.   

Commissioner Jung asked Mr. Dick if he attends the REMSA meetings in their entirety 
or if he is asked to leave during certain segments.  He replied that he participates up to the 
point the Executive Session begins, then he leaves.  Commissioner Jung asked what happens 
with appeals of the Air Quality Board decisions and Mr. Dick replied the appeal is heard by 
the DBOH.  Commissioner Jung opined the Boards were completely different and the 
analogy not pertinent.   

Commissioner Jung reiterated it was a new era, and although Councilmember Ratti had 
suggested a good compromise, this was the time to start off with a different relationship.  She 
stated she felt the Board appointees represent them and should report to them, asking 
questions, voicing opinions, discussing transparency issues or otherwise addressing topics 
that arise.   

Mr. Dick noted another issue with the analogy with the Air Pollution Control Board is 
that board is subject to the Open Meeting Law and the REMSA Board is not.   

December 18, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 7 of 17 



Chair Smith opined it was important for the DBOH to decide if they wanted the option to 
consider other appointees when a term ends.  He asked the members if they would like Mr. 
Begbie to come and have a discussion with the Board or if they would prefer he was one of a 
group of people available for selection.   

Dr. Hess moved that Mr. Begbie be reappointed to the REMSA Board.  He felt he 
had served the term and the Board had not asked him to do anything in a different way.  At 
this point, they had the ability to request he report to the Board.  He did not want to go 
through the process of considering other candidates.  Commissioner Jung seconded the 
motion for the purpose of discussion. 

Councilmember Ratti clarified that Dr. Hess’ comment was referring to five candidates 
for the MAP position.  Councilmember Ratti noted it would be disruptive to the REMSA 
Board to unseat the person they had chosen as chair.  She agreed the Health District and 
Board were undergoing change but this particular appointment was caught in the middle of 
the old ways and the new.  She stated she would like Mr. Begbie to come and tell the Board 
why he would like to continue to serve on the REMSA Board.  As stated earlier, that action 
sets a new tone for the direction of the DBOH.  She intends to vote for Mr. Begbie’s 
reappointment, but not until next month, when the discussion with him has occurred.   

Councilmember Jardon asked Mr. Dick if he was recommending Mr. Begbie be 
reappointed and he confirmed that he was.   

The motion to reappoint Mr. Begbie to the At-Large position passed with six in 
favor and Councilmember Ratti opposed.   

Councilmember Ratti moved to invite the candidates for the accounting-specific 
position to the next meeting to make presentations.  She also moved to delegate the 
structure and format of that presentation to staff, retaining a segment for open 
questions.  Commissioner Jung seconded the motion which passed unanimously.   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

11. Presentation and Possible Acceptance of 2015 Washoe County District Board of Health
Meeting Calendar
Staff Representative: Mr. Dick

Mr. Dick introduced the item. 

Councilmember Ratti moved to accept the calendar.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion 
which was approved unanimously.  

Mr. Dick explained the budget items will be incorporated into the February meeting and 
the Board may schedule a strategic retreat later in the year if they so wish. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

12. Presentation, discussion and possible approval of proposed new Washoe County Health
District Logo
Staff Representative: Mr. Dick

Mr. Dick presented the staff report, noting the current logo is difficult to reproduce and 
does not identify that it represents the Health District.  The new one is much clearer and 
cleaner.   

December 18, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 8 of 17 



 

Dr. Humphreys noted changes of this nature have fiscal impacts.  Mr. Dick stated the 
District is aware of the need to control costs so the plan is to do a soft roll out and change 
letterhead and business cards as new orders come in.  The Community Health Assessment 
and the upcoming Healthy Communities Conference both offered opportunities to introduce 
it to the community.  

Councilmember Jardon asked what the Public Health logo was attempting to express, and 
Mr. Ulibarri explained the trident signified prevent, promote and protect.   

Councilmember Ratti moved to accept the new logo.  Mr. Silverman seconded the 
motion which was approved unanimously. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

13. Acknowledgement of the receipt of the Health District Fund Financial Review for Fiscal 
Year 2015 year to date November 30, 2014 
Staff Representative: Ms. Heenan 

Ms. Heenan presented the review.  She noted it was typical for expenditures to exceed 
revenues during the first months of the year as grant reimbursement can be slow.  During the 
fourth quarter, the opposite will be true.  Additionally, some annually-budgeted expenditures 
are completely depleted during the first months of the fiscal year.  

Councilmember Ratti asked if the lower fund balance figure for the beginning of the year 
was due to the Board’s decision to start with a lower balance to help fund the current year.  
Ms. Heenan acknowledged that was correct and added that the District did not receive a 
General Fund transfer during the first month.  She noted it had been an intentional decision to 
reduce the fund balance but that required monitoring, as it had been quite diminished.   

Ms. Heenan explained the components of the fund balance, noting a substantial portion 
was restricted funds.  The fund balance should not be used to balance the budget, that should 
occur through increased revenues and decreased expenditures.   

Councilmember Ratti moved to acknowledge receipt of the report.  Commissioner Jung 
seconded the motion which was approved unanimously.   
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

14. Discussion, acknowledgement and possible direction to staff given status quo financial 
projections for the Health District Fund and the next steps in preparation of the Fiscal 
Year 2015-2016 Budget Process 
Staff Representative: Ms. Heenan 

Ms. Heenan presented the staff report.  She explained the goal of the item was to set the stage 
for where the Board wished to go in Fiscal Year (FY) 16.   

Ms. Heenan provided a brief economic outlook, noting the economy appears healthy and job 
growth is at 3.7 percent, which drives up sales tax and property tax projections.  She pointed out 
that will positively affect the General Fund, which is the source of approximately half of the 
District’s funding.  She noted the County, as well as the District, was faced with inherent 
increases in expenditures that were not controllable, such as merit, PERS and health insurance.   

Ms. Heenan went on to explain that the budget for FY15 was essentially flat but was 
actually deficit.  Therefore, it was important to go into FY16 with the mindset of closing the 

 
December 18, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 9 of 17 



gap.  She acknowledged the Board had been proactive in dealing with budget issues by 
authorizing the Fundamental Review and its recommendations to conduct cost analyses and 
review the fee structure.  It was hoped those activities could help reduce the deficit.   

Ms. Heenan stated the fees would be workshopped in February and brought back to the 
Board for direction in March.  Her updated projections, to be presented to the Board in 
February, would include the new fees, with the understanding they may need to be reversed out 
of that projection if the Board does not approve them.   

She explained the next step to close the gap was the cost analyses on all 22 programs, which 
would uncover revenue increase and cost expenditure opportunities.  The staff report contained 
a three-year forecast for all 22 programs and a chart indicating at what point a fund balance 
problem will occur if no changes are made.   

Fiscal staff will be working with program managers to review estimated year-end 
expenditures and revenues, adjusting base requests for FY16 and developing their requests for 
any new items or services.  That information will be integrated into the forecasting model and 
brought back to the Board in February so they may see the input.  The numbers for the 
employee-related costs should be available by then and would also be reflected in the forecast.   

Any direction provided by the Board in February will be incorporated into the forecast and 
brought back in March.  The County will present their budget to the Board of County 
Commissioners (BCC) in April.  By that time, the District will know how much the General 
Fund transfer will be.  The BCC adopts the budget in May and sends it to the State. 

Dr. Hess noted 71 percent of the budget was salary and benefits and Ms. Heenan’s staff 
report indicated any cuts should come from sources other than staff reductions.  He expressed 
concern the remaining 29 percent did not provide enough flexibility to make a difference and 
opined it would be necessary to look at staffing.  Ms. Heenan acknowledged the District had 
control over the number of employees, but not the pay structure.   

Councilmember Ratti complemented Ms. Heenan on the presentation of the material.  She 
requested an explanation of the term “status quo,” possibly meaning that no major shifts would 
be made this year, only minor adjustments.  Ms. Heenan stated that was correct.  She further 
explained it referred to no revenue increases and the inevitable expenditure increase. 
Councilmember Ratti asked if the forecast was status quo.  Ms. Heenan explained that if no 
changes were made at this point in time, the District will face the ending fund balance being 
negative in approximately a year and a half.   

Ms. Heenan went on to reiterate the fund balance contained restricted funding, and it was 
unlikely that would be spent by the end of the year.  Therefore it would show as part of the 
remaining fund balance but would not be available for general use.   

Councilmember Ratti clarified that by accepting the report, the Board acknowledges the 
status quo environment which is problematic, and decisions will need to be made to address 
those problems.  Ms. Heenan noted that was correct and reiterated the draft budget would be 
brought back in February so Board approval or direction will drive the new financial situation.   

Chair Smith asked for an overview of the restricted fund balances and Ms. Heenan provided 
them for him, as well as providing examples of what the funds could be used for.  Chair Smith 
reiterated it could create a false picture to the BCC of how much money the District had 
available.  Ms. Heenan stated that could be explained to them.   

December 18, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 10 of 17 



Commissioner Jung noted a time when the County Manager had halted all expenditures for 
a specified duration of time.  She asked if Mr. Dick had that authority and if Ms. Heenan agreed 
with that type of philosophy.  Ms. Heenan stated she agreed with the strategy but felt it did not 
need to be adopted at this time, as current staff were aware of and respected fiscal constraints.  
Mr. Dick could adopt the strategy if he chose to.  Commissioner Jung indicated she wanted the 
record to reflect that was an option, as it had been very effective at the time.  She opined the use 
of an ending fund balance was not an optimal way to balance a budget.  The District could 
function on a tight margin as it had the County for backup if absolutely necessary, but its margin 
had always been a deficit and has always been used to balance the following year.   

Mr. Dick noted that when the general fund transfer amount was not yet known during the 
previous budget cycle, the District entered a period during which vacant positions were not 
filled and existing staff stepped up to cover the additional work.  He agreed it was not an 
optimal way to conduct business.   

He noted the report was Ms. Heenan’s idea and that he had supported it.  The intention was 
to provide the Board with a picture of what would occur if things continued in the current 
direction.  He felt it was a good tool to help frame decisions, which were not all about reducing 
spending, but also recovering revenue.   

Dr. Humphreys moved to acknowledge receipt of the status quo financial 
projections and direct staff to continue with the next steps for the next fiscal year. 
Councilmember Ratti seconded the motion which was approved unanimously.   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

15. Discussion, acknowledge and possible direction to staff on the recommended cost
analysis and methodology for the Health District Administration to conduct a cost
analysis of all Health District programs – Fundamental Review Recommendation #10.
Staff Representative: Ms. Heenan

Ms. Heenan presented the staff report, explaining it was being presented to receive 
feedback from the Board to be sure staff was providing them with the information they 
would like to have for the cost analysis.  Methodology approved by the Board in June was 
utilized, which involved gathering historical fiscal records, reviewing activities and work 
processes, determining required staffing, and comparing those to benchmarks and best 
practices, which allowed identification of potential improvements.   

Councilmember Ratti reiterated her appreciation for Ms. Heenan’s ability to clearly express 
status and goals.  She noted the Board had had to make tough decisions during the recession and 
had utilized a matrix format to compare options, but that did not indicate the scale of changes 
that were necessary.  It also did not indicate if individual programs were efficient.  She 
acknowledged cost analysis processes can make staff a bit nervous and shared that her view was 
that it was only one source of data, it was not all-encompassing. 

Commissioner Jung recalled the Board giving clear direction not to use the National 
Association of County and City Health Officials (NACCHO) benchmarks or public health 
uniform distribution as benchmarks as Nevada, as a state, performs much more poorly in terms 
of contributions to public health.  Therefore, comparisons to national associations give the 
appearance of Washoe County always being at the bottom of the list in terms of services and 

December 18, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 11 of 17 



expenditures, rendering the comparisons meaningless.  She opined the Fundamental Review 
(FR) had directed staff to use pre-recession versus post-recession statistics as benchmarks.   

Ms. Heenan explained the staff report requesting direction from the Board was to use the 
PHUND$ database.  Those statistics are compared to the region that includes Washoe County, 
which is the West.  Commissioner Jung reiterated neighboring counties have higher 
expenditures so it was not a fair comparison.   

Mr. Dick explained the FR included some analysis comparing Washoe County to 
benchmarks.  The financial analysis utilized the PHUND$ system to analyze the Health District 
and programs.  While the District may be below levels of benchmarks from other health districts 
in the Administrative Health Services (AHS) area, others were identified as being above the 
benchmark levels.  Commissioner Jung reiterated her recollection from the FR and the Board 
was to use pre-recession and pre-County Wide Cost Allocation Plan (COWCAP) levels for 
benchmarks.   

Chair Smith asked if the FR review team had selected certain cities to use for comparison. 
Dr. Hess stated he found it very useful to have some idea of what other health departments are 
investing their resources in, and to not view that as a mistake.   

Commissioner Jung noted the FR team had suggested the District not follow that 
methodology.  According to their projections, and with the state and local government’s 
investment or lack thereof, the District would have an opportunity to set and to achieve its own 
benchmarks.  That would help the District determine what is manageable and what matters to its 
citizens.  Other communities may have high benchmark comparison scores in community 
health, while Washoe County may do better in Air Quality.  Many of these comparisons are 
impossible, as the data comes from the wrong organizations.  Commissioner Jung stated she did 
not want to compare data utilizing an organization whose whole function is to lobby other 
communities to spend more money for health, not when so many other options are available.   

Dr. Hess stated he would not disagree with looking at some other source of information. 
Commissioner Jung stated the District was told by the FR team to use our pre-recession levels 
as a benchmark, at least for a fiscal basis.  Dr. Hess asked what good that would be as science 
has changed.  Commissioner Jung agreed, but opined it made more sense than using a different 
source.   

Ms. Heenan explained she was not aware of the requirement to utilize the pre-2007 levels.  
She stated she would take another look at the FR.  She also explained she was using the 
PHUND$ database as directed by the Board based on the staff report.  The District is now a 
member of PHUND$, which provides the opportunity to submit the information to the 
organization for analysis against other agencies.  They had noted that the District’s numbers 
were very different from many other agencies.  The analysis they provided offered the 
opportunity to be sure the comparisons are made against organizations that are similar.   

Ms. Heenan further explained she had reviewed the statistics from many different regions to 
find similar data for comparison purposes.  Many of the studies she did were rejected because 
they were not statistically valid.  Once valid statistics were located, there were enough 
comparables available to compile the information.  She pointed out that every public health 
organization is handled differently, and that creates challenges in locating benchmarks. 
NACCHO is one place where those benchmarks can be obtained.   

December 18, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 12 of 17 



 

Commissioner Jung explained comparisons against benchmarks did not indicate the overall 
efficiency of a division or program.  NACCHO is a wealthy organization so any attempts to 
model the District after them will be unsuccessful and will not assist in strategic planning.   

Mr. Dick stated staff would look at the FR and pre-recession levels, but he did not get the 
impression from the FR team that NACCHO benchmarks should not be used.  The statistics 
they provide begin as a survey of health districts and the statistics collected are broken out by 
staffing levels of districts that are serving different sizes and populations.  One of the FR team 
members that analyzed the Health District initially is on the committee that pulls those numbers 
together.  Mr. Dick noted the NACCHO data was one of the few sources available that provided 
any kind of comparable.  It was one source of information for planning purposes, but there were 
others as well. 

Councilmember Ratti requested more information about how public health data is collected.  
Ms. Heenan explained the National Connection for Local Public Health (NCLPH) sponsors the 
PHUND$ effort, and when an organization joins, it must submit extensive amounts of 
information which is fed into a central database.  This allows the NCLPH to provide 
comparables to other agencies.  Mr. Dick opined it had been a grant-funded project and stated 
he would check the origin. 

Councilmember Ratti stated she completely understood the value of comparing similar 
organizations.  She asked if it was possible to compare Washoe County data to communities, or 
just regions.  Ms. Heenan replied it was not possible to extract communities out of regions, but 
she could review different regions.  She noted the benchmarking for the pilot project in AHS 
provided unique challenges as there were limited numbers of benchmarks for that program.  
There were more available for the other programs in the District.   

Councilmember Ratti recalled the FR had indicated they could use the numbers but should 
not rely solely on them.  She was not inclined to dismiss them because they do provide a data 
point, and understood there were not many others to utilize.  Ms. Heenan stated there was not, 
and explained her analysis also included being sure divisions were being compared equally by 
reviewing equal programs.   

Councilmember Ratti explained the City of Sparks had reviewed the number of police 
officers per capita compared to other jurisdictions and had concluded through a third party 
independent study that the recommended number of officers was unnecessary for their area.  
She opined the initial data provided on overview that was a starting point for more thorough 
investigation and deliberation.  She stated she would also like to see pre-recession comparisons. 

Commissioner Jung expressed concern that if benchmarks were utilized, as health 
emergencies faded away, District strategic planning processes would become more complacent 
and utilize those exclusively.  That approach would not drive a continuous process improvement 
targeted towards the unique needs of Washoe County, particularly if the benchmarks utilized 
were not pertinent.  She noted part of her job as a Board member was to be sure this did not 
occur.  She wanted real public health change based on the findings of the FR.  Commissioner 
Jung went on to opine the better approach was to evaluate resources, and study the effectiveness 
and sustainability of programs.   

Additionally, she noted the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) had directed the Health 
District to begin working towards diminishing its dependency on General Fund (GF) transfers.  

 
December 18, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 13 of 17 



Strategic planning should involve working towards reducing that dependency and she opined 
utilizing inappropriate benchmarks, particularly those from NACCHO and the National 
Association of Local Boards of Health (NALBOH) would not help achieve that goal.   

Dr. Humphreys acknowledged processes were changing and methodologies were in 
transition, and he felt the information provided really spelled out where the District has been, 
where it is and where it needs to go.  He opined the information also gave them the information 
they needed to decide what should be done in the future.  He complemented Ms. Heenan on 
what she had done to educate the Board.   

Chair Smith stated, that because there was some confusion regarding what staff was told to 
do, that he recommended the minutes be reviewed as well as FR Recommendation 10, and 
report back to the Board, because there is valid points both ways.  He would want to do what the 
Board recommended and also follow the FR recommendations as the Board had agreed to.   

Councilmember Ratti expressed she was pleased to have some data on which to base a 
decision.  She acknowledged it was not all of the data they needed but the report and the 
discussion were all steps in the right direction.  Dr. Hess agreed and thanked Ms. Heenan.   

Chair Smith moved the minutes and the recommendation be reviewed and brought 
back to the Board.  Councilmember Ratti seconded the motion which was approved 
unanimously.   
[Councilmember Jardon departed the meeting at 3:17 p.m.] 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

16. Presentation, discussion, possible Board input and direction to staff to monitor and act
upon 2015 Legislative Session identified topics of interest and Bill Draft Requests
affecting the Health District and to submit a monthly staff legislative status report
providing an update on legislative actions and Health District positions during the
legislative session.
Staff Representative: Mr. Dick

Mr. Dick introduced the item and reviewed the District’s topics of interest.  He explained 
the Bill Draft Requests (BDR) contained very little information as to whether or not they are 
applicable to the District so the list of BDRs currently being tracked was hoped to be 
diminished as more information becomes available.   

Mr. Dick noted the item was being presented to inform the Board of the District’s efforts 
regarding the session and to provide them an opportunity to direct staff to look at other 
legislative areas.  Additionally, the staff report requested the Board set direction for staff to 
provide a monthly report to guide direction.   

Councilmember Ratti moved to accept the report.  Mr. Silverman seconded the 
motion which was approved unanimously.   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

17. Staff Reports and Program updates
A. Director, Air Quality Management (AQM) 

December 18, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 14 of 17 



Ms. Albee noted her report had provided information regarding a new ozone standard. 
The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has agreed with the recommendations 
submitted by AQM which were approved by the Board.  Washoe County is in attainment, 
which is good for public health and economic development.   

Dr. Hess requested information regarding days when the County was not in compliance 
and its effect on the overall ratings.  Ms. Albee replied it was not out of compliance per se, 
the compliance figure is compiled by utilizing data from the top percentile of the number of 
days the standard was exceeded.   

Ms. Albee further explained the data was compiled over a three-year period.  Although 
Washoe County was currently in attainment, the EPA will be announcing new standards.  If 
the County is then in non-attainment, voluntary programs will become mandatory.   

Ms. Albee expressed her sincerest appreciation to Chair Smith, noting his path over the 
years had been very impressive and that she admired his evolution.   

B. Director, Community and Clinical Health Services 
Mr. Kutz stated he had nothing further to add but would be happy to answer any 

questions.   

C. Director, Environmental Health Services 
Mr. Sack noted some information regarding Kiley Ranch had been included in the report. 

He stated any development does meet requirements as part of being approved.  Problems in 
the past have occurred when wetlands are placed into Home Owners Associations and the 
association not following through with their ongoing maintenance.   

Mr. Sack stated the last few weeks had seen a dramatic increase in plan reviews for wells, 
septic systems and water projects.  Councilmember Ratti asked if the impending merger of 
the water companies would be causing any of it and Mr. Sack stated it would not.  The 
drought is causing the need for a number of redrills.   

Commissioner Jung asked who paid for larvacide treatment costs.  Mr. Sack explained it 
was covered by General Fund money provided to the Health District.  Commissioner Jung 
asked if there was a way to reclaim or recoup costs and Mr. Sack replied that was being 
explored, but nothing in the fee structure allowed it.  Commissioner Jung opined that for any 
new development the charges should be calculated and put into an escrow account so that all 
taxpayers are not subsidizing the developers.  Mr. Sack reiterated that was being reviewed for 
potential direction and action.  

Councilmember Ratti reminded the Board the FR team had asked why the county was 
spending so much money on mosquito control when there were so few problems.  She 
suggested spending time on exploring that question rather than trying to decide how to 
charge the proper entities.  Perhaps the money would be better spent on other health issues in 
the County.   

Mr. Sack pointed out very few environmental health agencies dealt with mosquitos; it is 
typically handled by another agency.   

D. Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness 

December 18, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 15 of 17 



Mr. Whitesides noted one change from the contents of the packet, one Enterovirus D68 
case has been reported in Washoe County. 

E. District Health Officer, Office of the District Health Officer 
Mr. Dick reviewed his trip to Emmitsburg, MD for a regional emergency management 

course and exercise which simulated a major earthquake in the Reno area.  Aaron Kenneston, 
the County’s Emergency Manager, had created the opportunity and obtained grant funding to 
cover most of the costs for a contingent of about 70 representatives from the Washoe County 
region.   

Mr. Dick stated Immunizations was now open some evenings, which had been a FR 
recommendation.  Staff is flexing their schedules so the service is being made available 
without requiring overtime or comp time pay.   

He recognized Dr. Lei Chen, who had spotted an error on a CDC infographic, resulting in 
a corrected version being distributed.   

He thanked Chair Smith and wished everyone a happy holiday. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

18. Board Comment
Commissioner Jung explained the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) had

utilized funds to retrofit and upgrade an ambulance to be ready in case of a mass disaster 
situation.  REMSA was not pleased with this information but the BCC requested that TMFPD 
work through the Health District to come to an agreement.  The goal is to use the ambulance in 
the frontier areas to transport patients to a place where they can be transferred to a REMSA unit. 
It may become an issue requiring review by the DBOH.   

______________________________________________________________________________ 

19. Emergency Items
None.

______________________________________________________________________________ 

20. *Public Comment 
As there was no one wishing to speak, Chair Smith closed the public comment period. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
21. Adjournment

At 3:42 p.m., Councilmember Ratti moved to adjourn.  Chair Smith seconded the
motion which was approved unanimously.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
Secretary to the District Board of Health 

December 18, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 16 of 17 



Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary 
Recording Secretary 

Approved by Board in session on ___________________, 2015. 

December 18, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 17 of 17 



Proclamation 
WHEREAS, many Washoe County residents don’t know that radon is a colorless, 
odorless, naturally occurring radioactive gas that is the leading cause of lung cancer 
among nonsmokers; and 

WHEREAS, the U.S. EPA estimates 21,000 people in the U.S. die each year from 
lung cancer caused by indoor radon exposure; and 

WHEREAS, radon kills more people than secondhand smoke, drunk driving, falls 
in the home, drowning, or home fires; and 

WHEREAS, any home in Washoe County may have elevated levels of radon, even 
if neighbors don’t, and living in a home with elevated levels is like smoking half a 
pack of cigarettes a day; and 

WHEREAS, easy and inexpensive testing can help identify and fix the risk of radon 
exposure; and 

WHEREAS, the Washoe County Health District, the University of Nevada 
Cooperative Extension, the American Lung Association, the Nevada Division of 
Public and Behavioral Health, and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
support efforts to test for radon, mitigate elevated levels, and have new homes built 
with radon-reducing features. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved, that the Washoe County District Board of 
Health does hereby proclaim the month of January as  

Radon Action Month 
in Washoe County. 

_________________________________ 
Kitty Jung, Chair 
Washoe County District Board of Health 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.A



Proclamation 
WHEREAS, heart disease is the leading cause of death in Washoe County and 
throughout the state; and 

WHEREAS, making healthy choices regarding smoking, nutrition, physical 
activity, medical care and other lifestyle factors is essential to living a heart healthy 
life; and 

WHEREAS, promoting awareness of heart health issues, is an important 
responsibility and depends on the actions of many organizations and groups in our 
community; and 

WHEREAS, National Wear Red Day and its symbolic Red Dress® are building 
awareness of women's heart disease risk, and empowering them to reduce their risk 
and prevent heart disease; and 

WHEREAS, Washoe County residents are encouraged to take action to make heart 
health a priority for themselves and their families; 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved, that the Washoe County District Board of 
Health does hereby proclaim the month of February 2015,  

AMERICAN HEART MONTH 
and February 6, 2015, 

WEAR RED DAY 
encouraging all Washoe County citizens to work together to promote and improve 
heart health and increase awareness and understanding of women and heart disease. 

_________________________________ 
Kitty Jung, Chair 
Washoe County District Board of Health 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.B



STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2015 

DATE: January 9, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Charlene Albee, Director, Air Quality Management Division 
(775) 784-7211, calbee@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Recommendation for the Board to uphold a citation not appealed to the Air Pollution 
Control Hearing Board issued to Alston Construction, Case No. 1169, Unappealed Citation No. 5293 
with a $1,600.00 negotiated fine. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

Air Quality Management Division Staff recommends Citation No. 5293 be upheld and a fine of 
$1,600.00 be levied against Alston Construction for a violation of Section 030.2175, Operations 
Contrary to Permit, for a violation of Condition No. 3 of Dust Control Permit No. DCP14-0071 which 
requires any soil tracked onto adjoining paved roadways be promptly removed.  Failure to comply 
with the conditions of the dust control permit constitutes a Major Violation of the District Board of 
Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management.  This is a negotiated settlement. 

District Health Goal supported by this item: Achieve targeted improvements in health outcomes 
and health equity. 

BACKGROUND 

Wednesday October 7, 2014, Air Quality Management (AQMD) received a dust complaint from an 
anonymous source indicating a severe cloud of dust from earth movers at the location of Red Rock 
Road and Moya Boulevard.  The construction site near this intersection is the Project Wild Horse, 
which was 49 acres in size.  Air Quality Specialist II Michael Osborn responded to the site and 
observed a small amount of dust coming from the loading and unloading of trucks.  During this visit 
Specialist Osborn determined there was no dust violation.   

October 8, 2014, Specialist Osborn received another dust complaint on the Project Wild Horse.  On 
arrival Specialist Osborn observed a minor dust violation and contacted Tom Rushing of Alston 
Construction and Jimmy Willoughby of F&P Construction.  Specialist Osborn immediately shut down 
all operations and issued Alston Construction NOV Warning No. 5362 and F&P Construction NOV 
Warning 5363, both warnings were issued for failure to control fugitive dust and trackout. 

November 7, 2014, AQMD received two dust complaints. Air Quality Specialist II Kristina Craig 
conducted a site visit and met with Dayton Pitts from F&P Construction and Tom Rushing from  

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
AQM Office: 775-784-7200   I   Fax: 775-784-7225   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.A.1.a



DBOH / Alston Construction / Case No. 1169 
January 9. 2015 
Page 2 of 3 

Alston Construction, to discuss trackout dust mitigation options.  Tom Rushing shut down operations 
until trackout was cleaned up. Both contractors agreed to increase the trackout mitigation effort. 

November 10, 2014, AQMD received a complaint from the City of Reno for fugitive dust near the 
Project Wild Horse site.  Specialist Craig contacted Mr. Dayton Pitts and Mr. Randy Pitts of F&P 
Construction to discuss the condition of the project.  Mr. Randy Pitts shut down operations until 
additional control measures could be implemented.   

November 11, 2014, AQMD received another dust complaint from the City of Reno. Specialist Craig 
responded to the  Project Wild Horse site and conducted an inspection.  Again, representatives from 
Alston Construction and F&P Construction were contacted to discuss the need for more dust 
mitigation and trackout control. 

November 12, 2014, AQMD received another dust complaint near Red Rock Road in front of the 
Project Wild Horse site.  Senior Air Quality Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio and Specialist Craig 
responded and upon arrival at the site determined trackout on Red Rock Road was creating excessive 
fugitive dust from the soil being tracked onto the paved roadway.  The determination was made to 
issue Notice of Violation Citation No. 5293 to Alston Construction and Citation No. 5294 to F&P 
Construction for failure to comply with Condition No. 3 of Dust Control Permit No. DCP14-0071.  
Additional mitigation measures were agreed upon and would be implemented immediately.     

November 13, 2014, AQMD received a fugitive dust complaint from the Red Rock Road area.  
Specialist Craig met with Mr. Rushing to discuss non-compliance with dust control plan and, 
excessive complaints.  Mr. Rushing shut down the job site. 

November 14, 2014, Division Director Albee, Branch Chief Wolf and Specialist Craig met with both 
Mr. Pitts to inform them that a “Stop Work Order” was being issued for the fugitive dust and trackout 
problem.  During the meeting it was determined that the stop work order would not be issued at this 
time but would be deferred until the following Monday pending implementation of additional 
effective dust mitigation measures. 

November 17, 2014, Specialist Craig performed site visit to determine if dust control measures 
incorporated during the weekend were sufficient.  No dust violations were observed during visit.  
AQMD has received subsequent complaints; however, to date no additional violations have been 
identified. 

On December 9, 2014, Senior Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio conducted a negotiated settlement meeting 
attended by Specialist Kristina Craig, Mr. Mark Drahos Project Manager for Alston Construction.  
Specialist Cerfoglio explained their responsibility for controlling fugitive dust on the site.  Senior 
Specialist Cerfoglio commented that trackout and fugitive dust needed to be controlled by whatever 
means necessary on the job site 24 hours a day 7 days a week.  All parties agreed the trackout and 
fugitive dust problems were the responsibility of Alston Construction and F&P Construction and 
would be addressed in the future.  After careful consideration of all the facts in the case, Senior 
Specialist Cerfoglio recommended Citation No. 5293 be upheld with a fine of $1,600.00.  A 
Memorandum of Understanding was signed by all parties. 



DBOH / Alston Construction / Case No. 1169 
January 9. 2015 
Page 3 of 3 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There are no fiscal impacts resulting from the Board upholding the issuance of the Notice of Violation 
Citation and associated fine.  All fine money collected is forwarded to the Washoe County School 
District to be used for environmentally focused projects for the benefit of the students. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the Board uphold unappealed Notice of Violation Citation No 5293 issued to 
Alston Construction with a $1,600.00 negotiated fine.  Alternatives to upholding the citation as 
presented include: 

• The District Board of Health may determine no violation of the regulations has occurred and
dismiss Citation No. 5293.

• The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5293 and levy any fine in the range of $0 to
$10,000.00 per day.

In the event the Board determines to change the penalty, the matter should be continued to allow for 
Alston Construction to be properly noticed. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be: 

“Move to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.” 











STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2015 

DATE: January 9, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Charlene Albee, Director, Air Quality Management Division 
(775) 784-7211, calbee@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Recommendation for the Board to uphold a citation not appealed to the Air Pollution 
Control Hearing Board issued to F&P Construction, Case No. 1168, Unappealed Citation No. 5294 
with a $1,600.00 negotiated fine. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

Air Quality Management Division Staff recommends Citation No. 5294 be upheld and a fine of 
$1,600.00 be levied against F&P Construction for a violation of Section 030.2175, Operations 
Contrary to Permit, for a violation of Condition No. 3 of the Dust Control Permit No. DCP14-0092 
which requires any soil tracked onto adjoining paved roadways to be promptly removed.  Failure to 
comply with the conditions of the dust control permit constitutes a Major Violation of the District 
Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management.  This is a negotiated settlement. 

District Health Goal supported by this item: Achieve targeted improvements in health outcomes 
and health equity. 

BACKGROUND 

Wednesday October 7, 2014, Air Quality Management (AQMD) received a dust complaint from an 
anonymous source indicating a severe cloud of dust from earth movers at the location of Red Rock 
Road and Moya Boulevard.  The construction site near this intersection is the Project Wild Horse, 
which was 49 acres in size.  Air Quality Specialist II Michael Osborn responded to the site and 
observed a small amount of dust coming from the loading and unloading of trucks.  During this visit 
Specialist Osborn determined there was no dust violation.   

October 8, 2014, Specialist Osborn received another dust complaint on the Project Wild Horse.  On 
arrival Specialist Osborn observed a minor dust violation and contacted Tom Rushing of Alston 
Construction and Jimmy Willoughby of F&P Construction.  Specialist Osborn immediately shut down 
all operations and issued Alston Construction NOV Warning No. 5362 and F&P Construction NOV 
Warning 5363, both warnings were issued for failure to control fugitive dust and trackout. 

November 7, 2014, AQMD received two dust complaints. Air Quality Specialist II Kristina Craig 
conducted a site visit and met with Dayton Pitts from F&P Construction and Tom Rushing from  

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
AQM Office: 775-784-7200   I   Fax: 775-784-7225   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.A.1.b



DBOH / F & P Construction / Case No. 1168 
January 9. 2015 
Page 2 of 3 

Alston Construction, to discuss trackout dust mitigation options.  Tom Rushing shut down operations 
until trackout was cleaned up. Both contractors agreed to increase the trackout mitigation effort. 

November 10, 2014, AQMD received a complaint from the City of Reno for fugitive dust near the 
Project Wild Horse site.  Specialist Craig contacted Mr. Dayton Pitts and Mr. Randy Pitts of F&P 
Construction to discuss the condition of the project.  Mr. Randy Pitts shut down operations until 
additional control measures could be implemented.   

November 11, 2014, AQMD received another dust complaint from the City of Reno.  Specialist Craig 
responded to the Project Wild Horse site and conducted an inspection.  Again, representatives from 
Alston Construction and F&P Construction were contacted to discuss the need for more dust 
mitigation and trackout control. 

November 12, 2014, AQMD received another dust complaint near Red Rock Road in front of the 
Project Wild Horse site.  Senior Air Quality Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio and Specialist Craig 
responded and upon arrival at the site determined trackout on Red Rock Road was creating excessive 
fugitive dust from the soil being tracked onto the paved roadway.  The determination was made to 
issue Notice of Violation Citation No. 5293 to Alston Construction and Citation No. 5294 to F&P 
Construction for failure to comply with Condition No. 3 of Dust Control Permit No. DCP14-0092.  
Additional mitigation measures were agreed upon and would be implemented immediately.     

November 13, 2014, AQMD received a fugitive dust complaint from the Red Rock Road area.  
Specialist Craig met with Mr. Rushing to discuss non-compliance with dust control plan and, 
excessive complaints.  Mr. Rushing shut down the job site. 

November 14, 2014, Division Director Albee, Branch Chief Wolf and Specialist Craig met with both 
Mr. Pitts to inform them that a “Stop Work Order” was being issued for the fugitive dust and trackout 
problem.  During the meeting it was determined that the stop work order would not be issued at this 
time but would be deferred until the following Monday pending implementation of additional 
effective dust mitigation measures. 

November 17, 2014, Specialist Craig performed a site visit to determine if dust control measures 
incorporated during the weekend were sufficient.  No dust violations were observed during this visit.  
AQMD has received subsequent complaints; however, to date no additional violations have been 
identified. 

On December 9, 2014, Senior Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio conducted a negotiated settlement meeting 
attended by Specialist Kristina Craig, Mr. Matt Clafton, Mr. Randy Pitts and Mr. Dayton Pitts for 
F&P Construction.  Specialist Cerfoglio explained their individual responsibilities for controlling 
fugitive dust on the site.  Senior Specialist Cerfoglio commented that trackout and fugitive dust 
needed to be controlled by whatever means necessary on the job site 24 hours a day 7 days a week. 
All parties agreed the trackout and fugitive dust problems were the responsibility of F&P Construction 
and Alston Construction and would be addressed in the future.  After careful consideration of all the 
facts in the case, Senior Specialist Cerfoglio recommended Citation No. 5294 be upheld with a fine of 
$1,600.00.  A Memorandum of Understanding was signed by all parties. 



DBOH / F & P Construction / Case No. 1168 
January 9. 2015 
Page 3 of 3 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There are no fiscal impacts resulting from the Board upholding the issuance of the Notice of Violation 
Citation and associated fine.  All fine money collected is forwarded to the Washoe County School 
District to be used for environmentally focused projects for the benefit of the students. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the Board uphold unappealed Notice of Violation Citation No 5294 issued to F&P 
Construction with a $1,600.00 negotiated fine.  Alternatives to upholding the citation as presented 
include: 

• The District Board of Health may determine no violation of the regulations has occurred and
dismiss Citation No. 5294.

• The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5294 and levy any fine in the range of $0 to
$10,000.00 per day.

In the event the Board determines to change the penalty, the matter should be continued to allow for 
F&P Construction to be properly noticed. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be: 

“Move to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.” 











STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2015 

DATE: December 23, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Charlene Albee, Director, Air Quality Management Division 
(775) 784-7211, calbee@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Recommendation for the Board to uphold a citation not appealed to the Air Pollution 
Control Hearing Board issued to NITU Arlington Gas (dba Jackson Foods) Case No. 1170, 
Unappealed Citation No. 5455, with a $2,500.00 negotiated fine. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

Air Quality Management Division Staff recommends Citation No. 5455 be upheld and a fine of 
$2,500.00 be levied against NITU Arlington Gas for a violation of Condition No. 4 of Permit to 
Operate Number G11-0005.  Condition No. 4 of the Permit to Operate requires annual testing. 
Failure to conduct the annual testing constitutes a Major Violation of the District Board of Health 
Regulations Governing Air Quality Management, specifically Section 030.2175 – Operations 
Contrary to Permit).  This is a negotiated settlement. 

District Health Goal supported by this item: Achieve targeted improvements in health outcomes 
and health equity. 

BACKGROUND 

On November 24, 2014, Specialist Suzanne Dugger performed a routine annual inspection at 350 
South Arlington Street.  During the inspection Specialist Dugger noted the facility had failed to 
perform the A/L (air to liquid) Test and the Static Pressure Decay Test both of which are to be 
performed annually.  Condition No. 4 of Permit to Operate No. G11-0005 stipulates: 

An annual A/L (Air to Liquid) Test and Static Pressure Decay Test will be required to 
demonstrate compliance with the CARB Executive Orders for vacuum assist Phase II vapor 
recovery systems.  The AQMD must be notified at least 72 hours prior to the test.  The testing 
must be completed 90 days from the expiration date of this permit and the results submitted 
within 30 days of the test.        

Due to the failure of performing the required tests Specialist Dugger issued Notice of Violation 
Citation No. 5455 per the requirements of Section 030.2175, Operations Contrary to Permit of the 

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
AQM Office: 775-784-7200   I   Fax: 775-784-7225   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.A.1.c



DBOH / NITU Gas dba Jackson Foods / Case No. 1170 
January 22, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management.  Specialist Dugger 
requested that the testing be scheduled within one week.   

On November 26, 2014, Specialist Dugger was notified by the manager at Arlington Gas that the 
testing was performed and the test results would be available immediately.   

On December 15, 2014, Enforcement Branch Chief Michael Wolf conducted a negotiated settlement 
meeting via phone call attended by Specialist Suzanne Dugger and Mr. Richard Wright, representative 
for Jackson Foods.  Branch Chief Wolf explained to Mr. Wright the citation had been issued because 
the facility had not performed the required annual testing.  Mr. Wright was informed the testing is a 
necessity to demonstrate the facility is in compliance with permit conditions and district regulations. 
Mr. Wright acknowledged his responsibility to have the required annual testing performed and 
advised he would do a better job in the future.  After consideration of the facts, Branch Chief Wolf 
proposed Citation No. 5455 be upheld with a fine of $2,500.00.  A Memorandum of Understanding 
was signed by all parties. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There are no fiscal impacts resulting from the Board upholding the issuance of the Notice of Violation 
Citation and associated fine.  All fine money collected is forwarded to the Washoe County School 
District to be used for environmentally focused projects for the benefit of the students.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the Board uphold unappealed Notice of Violation Citation No 5455 issued to NITU 
Arlington Gas dba Jackson Foods with a $2,500.00 negotiated fine.  Alternatives to upholding the 
citation as presented include: 

1. The District Board of Health may determine no violation of the regulations has occurred
and dismiss Citation No. 5455.

2. The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5455 and levy any fine in the range of
$0 to $10,000 per day.

In the event the Board determines to change the penalty, the matter should be continued to allow Mr. 
Wright to be properly noticed. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 

Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be: 

“Move to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.” 















STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: January 22, 2015 

DATE: January 9, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Charlene Albee, Director  
(775) 784-7211, calbee@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Approval of a pilot program to allow open burning within the Truckee Meadows Fire 
Protection District jurisdiction outside of the Truckee Meadows Hydrographic Area 
from February 14 through 28, 2015. 

SUMMARY 

In response to a request submitted by the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD), the Air 
Quality Management Division (AQMD) is recommending the District Board of Health approve a pilot 
program to allow open burning, with conditional approval, for a 15 day period prior to the AQMD 
regulatory start date of March 1.  TMFPD’s request was submitted in response to citizen inquiries 
regarding the limited period open burning is allowed due to AQMD’s statutory public health 
requirements and TMFPD’s public safety requirements.   

Health District goal supported by this item: Achieve targeted improvements in health outcomes 
and health equity. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 

District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management Section 040.035, “Open 
Fires”, was amended in April 1988 and August 1993.  

BACKGROUND 

District Board of Health Regulations Governing Air Quality Management (AQM Regulation) Section 
040.035, “Open Fires”, prohibits burning, with limited exceptions, year-round in the Truckee 
Meadows Hydrographic Area.  Limited open burning is allowed outside of this area from March 1 
through October 31.   

On December 16, 2014, the AQMD received a written request from the TMFPD to extend the open 
burning period, as defined by AQM Regulation Section 040.035.D.1.  TMFPD considers factors such 
as fuel moisture and climate to determine when open burning is allowed.  In recent years, the drought 

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
AQM Office: 775-784-7200   I   Fax: 775-784-7225   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.B.1



Subject: TMFPD Pilot Program 
Date: January 22, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 

has forced the TMFPD to close the burn season earlier in the spring and open it later in the fall.  The 
TMFPD spring burn season has averaged approximately ten days over the last three seasons.   

The table below summarizes the proposed additional 15 days in February for the most recent five 
years.  The most recent three years are more appropriate because: 1) The Fine Particulate Matter 
(PM2.5) Air Quality Index (AQI) calculations were revised in 2012 which increased the number of 
days the AQI was above 50, and 2) a PM2.5 monitor was installed in Sparks in 2012 where higher 
wintertime concentrations are typically measured.  An AQI of 101 corresponds to the health-based 
National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS).  Washoe County currently meets the NAAQS 
however; the trend is showing higher wintertime PM2.5 concentrations. 

Spring 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 
Ave 

(12-14) 
Air Quality Data (Feb 14-28) 
  - Max PM2.5 (ug/m3) 15.0 16.7 17.4 19.8 12.6 16.6 
  - Max PM2.5 (AQI) 57 61 62 67 52 60 
  - Days when AQI >= 50 2 3 2 7 4 4.3 
  - Days of Yellow/Red 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 
  - Date of last Yellow/Red Jan 7 Jan 10 Jan 2 Jan 24 Jan 28 Jan 18 
Weather Data (Feb 14-28) 
  - Days >= 0.01 in. precip. 2 0 3 0 5 2.7 
  - Total precipitation (in.) 0.26 T 0.11 T 0.33 0.15 

Weather conditions in late February may be unsettled or stagnant.  Allowing open burning only on 
days with good dispersion will minimize increased PM2.5 concentrations. 

Land managers such as the Nevada Division of Forestry and US Forest Service conduct prescribed 
burns as part of their forest management programs.  They prepare Smoke Management Plans for each 
prescribed burn project.  These plans include very specific weather conditions that must be met before 
the burn can begin.  The conditions ensure that the prescribed burns meet Washoe County’s Smoke 
Management Program and minimize the impact to the community.  All land managers in Washoe 
County voluntarily postpone their burns when the wintertime burn code is Yellow.  Prescribed burns 
are prohibited when the burn code is Red.  AQMD staff recommends that open burn permittees also 
follow this guideline.  

Public participation in this pilot program is unknown.  If large quantities of projects, acres, or tons of 
materials is allowed to burn on the same day, PM2.5 levels may increase to unhealthy levels.  Tracking 
burns on a daily basis will be necessary to determine the incremental air quality impacts and if the 
pilot program is successful. 



Subject: TMFPD Pilot Program 
Date: January 22, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 

AQMD staff supports a spring pilot program with the following specific conditions. 
1. TMFPD shall document that each open burn permittee is in compliance with AQM

Regulation Section 040.035. 
2. TMFPD shall submit a summary of open burns conducted during the pilot program to the

AQMD by March 15, 2015.  The summary shall include date, location, and amount of 
material for each burn.  

3. Open burring shall not be conducted when the wintertime burn code is Yellow or Red.

The spring pilot program will be considered successful if all of the following are demonstrated. 
1. No significant increases of air pollutants are monitored.
2. The open fires do not cause a public nuisance.
3. Compliance with the Yellow and Red burn codes is demonstrated.
4. Compliance with AQM Regulation Section 040.035 is demonstrated, specifically subsections

D.2 through D.10.

If approved, the AQMD and TMFPD will provide an evaluation of the spring pilot program to the 
DBOH by the July 23, 2015 meeting.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

There will be no fiscal impacts from the Board approving the pilot program. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the Board approve the pilot program to allow for open burning with conditional 
approval, as presented in the staff report, for the period from February 14 through 28, 2015. 
Alternatives to approving the pilot program as presented include: 

1. The Board may decide to not approve the extended burn period and direct staff to enforce
Section 040.035 as currently adopted.

2. The Board may direct staff to further investigate the effects of the extended burn period and
other potential solutions to meet the needs of the citizens of Washoe County.

POSSIBLE MOTION 

Should the Board concur with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be: 

“Move to approve a pilot program to allow open burning within the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection 
District jurisdiction outside of the Truckee Meadows Hydrographic Area, from February 14 through 
28, 2015, with the AQMD conditions presented in the staff report.” 



December 16, 2014 

Ms. Charlene Albee 
Director, Air Quality Management Division 
Washoe County Health District 
1001 East Ninth St., B171 
P.O. Box 11130 
Reno, NV  89520 

Dear Ms. Albee, 

The Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) would like to request an extension of the open burning 
period, as defined in the Washoe County Smoke Management Program, adopted by the Washoe County Board of 
Fire Commissioners August 26, 2014.   

TMFPD understands that open burning is closed, per Health District regulations, November 1st through February 
28th on an annual basis.  We would like to allow our residents the opportunity to burn their untreated yard debris 
in a time when the fuel moistures are up and there is some moisture in the area.  We have noticed in recent 
years that we seem to get moisture in the area in the two weeks after the open burning season ends, between 
November 1st and November 14th.  

In recent years, we have also experienced moisture, and ideal open burning weather, in the two weeks prior to 
February 28th as well.  Therefore, TMFPD would like to request an extension of the open burning period to 
include November 1st through November 14th and February 14th through February 28th.  We understand that 
residents are required to have a permit listing all requirements for open burning in accordance with Washoe 
County Code 60 prior to burning within this time period.  TMFPD will only open burning if the conditions within 
the area are safe to do so, as determined by the current weather and suggestions of staff.  

Thank you for your consideration.  Please feel free to contact me with questions at 775‐326‐6000.  

Regards, 

/s/ 

Charles A. Moore 
Fire Chief 

TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
1001 E. Ninth St. Bldg D 2nd Floor • Reno, Nevada  89512 • PO Box 11130 • Reno, Nevada 89520 

Office  775.326.6000  Fax  775.326.6003 



STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: January 22, 2015 

TO:   District Board of Health 

FROM:  Erin Dixon, Fiscal Compliance Officer, 775-328-2419, edixon@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT:  Approve the abolishment of one vacant Intermittent Hourly Licensed Engineer 
position (#70007454).   

SUMMARY 
It is recommended that the District Board of Health approve the abolishment of one vacant 
Intermittent Hourly Licensed Engineer position (#70007454). 

District Board of Health strategic priority:  Be assured that mandates are met and needed services 
are delivered. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
There has been no previous action taken by the Board this fiscal year. 

BACKGROUND 
The Intermittent Hourly Licensed Engineer position has been vacant since March 23, 2013. The 
position resides in the Environmental Health Division and was established to allow for additional 
staffing support. This staffing support is no longer necessary due to the hire of a full time Licensed 
Engineer on November 18, 2013. The Washoe County Health District is requesting that this position 
be removed from the authorized position list effective February 1, 2015.  

FISCAL IMPACT 
Should the Board approve to abolish this position, there will be no additional fiscal impact to the 
FY15 adopted budget.   

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health approve the abolishment of one vacant 
Intermittent Hourly Licensed Engineer position (#70007454).   

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to approve the abolishment of one vacant Intermittent Hourly Licensed Engineer position 
(#70007454).  

ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
AHS Office: 775-328-2410   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.B.2

mailto:edixon@washoecounty.us


STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2015 

DATE: January 8, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Patsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District 
775-328-2418, pbuxton@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Approval of Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada Department of Health 
and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health for the period January 1, 2015 
through December 31, 2015, in the amount of $317,061, in support of the HIV Prevention Grant 
Program, IO 10013.  

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the Health Officer 
to execute, contracts in excess of $100,000, Interlocal Agreements and amendments to the adopted 
budget.   

The Washoe County Health District received the Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada 
Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health in the amount 
of $317,061, for the period January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 in support of the HIV 
Prevention program, IO 10013.  A copy of Award is attached. 

District Board of Health strategic priority supported by this item: Experience a low rate of 
communicable disease. 

Approval of this Award also supports the District’s Community & Clinical Health Services Division 
Sexual Health program’s mission to provide comprehensive prevention education, treatment, and 
surveillance activities in Washoe County that reduce the incidence of STD infection including HIV. 
The Sexual Health Program emphasizes strategies that empower individuals to decrease risk-related 
behaviors, thereby decreasing the incidence of new STD and HIV infections in the community. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
The District Board of Health approved a Notice of Subgrant Award in the amount of $317,061 in 
support of the HIV Prevention Program on February 27, 2014 for the period January 1, 2014 through 
December 31, 2014.   

BACKGROUND 
The Subgrant provides funding for personnel, travel and training, operating supplies, professional 
services, educational supplies, advertising , lab/outpatient, non-capital equipment, and other expenses, 
including funding specifically for community outreach, planning meetings and program participation 
via the use of incentives/enablers (including but not limited to, gift cards/gift certificates, 

ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
AHS Office: 775-328-2410   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9.B.3

mailto:pbuxton@washoecounty.us


transportation and food vouchers, educational outreach items, nutritious food and beverage, behavioral 
reinforcers, etc.). 

FISCAL IMPACT 
This is a calendar year grant and sufficient budget authority exists through June 30, 2015.  As such, no 
budget amendment is necessary. 

RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health approve the Notice of Subgrant Award from the 
Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health for the 
period January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015, in the amount of $317,061, in support of the HIV 
Prevention Grant Program, IO 10013.  

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to approve the Notice of Subgrant Award from the Nevada Department of Health and Human 
Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health for the period January 1, 2015 through December 
31, 2015, in the amount of $317,061, in support of the HIV Prevention Grant Program, IO 10013.  









































WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
EPIDEMIOLOGY AND PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS DIVISION

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Christina Conti, EMS Program Manager  
775-326-6042, cconti@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Introductions, interviews and possible selection and appointment of a candidate 
for the Member of the Accounting Profession District Board of Health 
Appointed Representative to the REMSA Board of Directors  

SUMMARY 
The REMSA Board of Directors is comprised of seven positions, three of which are District Board of 
Health (DBOH) appointed representatives.  The member of the accounting profession representative 
DBOH appointment was recently vacated by Dick Barnard.  This requires a DBOH appointment of a 
member of the accounting profession to serve the remainder of the term. 

District Health Strategic Objective supported by this item:  Achieve targeted improvements in 
health outcomes and health equity. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
In 1986, upon the creation of the Franchise agreement for ambulance services in Washoe County, the 
REMSA Board of Directors was created to include the three representatives appointed by the DBOH. 
Since 1986, the DBOH has appointed representatives to the REMSA Board of Directors as positions 
have become vacant.  

BACKGROUND 
During the November 20, 2014 DBOH meeting, EMS staff was directed to conduct an independent 
outreach for an appropriate replacement for the CPA position on the REMSA Board of Directors. 
EMS staff sent out an announcement to the largest firms in Washoe County as well as to the Nevada 
Society of CPAs.  The firms who received an announcement were: Ingenium CPA, CFO Accounting 
Solutions, and Pangborn & Co.  The outreach yielded three additional candidates to accompany the 
previous two submitted from REMSA outgoing Board of Director CPA Dick Barnard.  A summary of 
all five candidates is listed in alphabetical order below. 

Candidate #1 Carlon, Lisa 
Ms. Carlon has been in the field of public accounting since 1995.  Over the years, she has worked with 
CEOs, CFOs, bookkeepers, and advisors. In addition to public accounting, Ms. Carlon has non-profit 
experience and is the currently a Board member for the Nevada Diabetes Association.  The diverse 
background of Ms. Carlon has given her the ability to work successfully with other professionals, 
regardless of their discipline.  Ms. Carlon was submitted by REMSA as a possible DBOH 
appointment.  During her tour of REMSA, Ms. Carlon was impressed with the community 
involvement.  Ms. Carlon is interested in joining the Board to continue working in our community 
with non-profit organizations and utilizing her strengths of being a CPA to further the objectives of the 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 326-6055 FAX (775) 325-8130 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11



Subject: REMSA Board of Directors Appointments 
Date: December 18, 2014  
Page 2 of 3 

organization. 

Candidate #2: Dobrowski, Michael 
Mr. Dobrowski has worked in the accounting field since 1990, having experience in both private 
industry and healthcare.  Mr. Dobrowski has had involvement with Boards of Directors and 
Foundations, providing input on financial strategy and projects.  While the majority of his experience 
is in private industry, Mr. Dubrowski has a firsthand understanding of the healthcare industry from an 
auditors perspective as well as a member of the healthcare team.  Mr. Dobrowski responded to the 
recruitment of EMS staff.  Mr. Dowbroski hasn’t had an opportunity to tour REMSA.  However, he is 
impressed with the image REMSA projects in the community and the service provided to the citizens.  
Mr. Dobrowski is interested in joining the REMSA Board to give back to the community by utilizing 
his experience as a CPA and familiarity of the healthcare industry. 

Candidate #3: Jimenez, Nissa 
Ms. Jimenez has worked in public accounting since 2001.  During her career, Ms. Jimenez has 
participated on audit teams for both government and non-profit agencies, to include NLTFPD, 
REMSA and Tahoe Forest Hospital.  Ms. Jimenez also worked as a volunteer fire/EMT while in 
college in upstate New York, which allowed her the opportunity to help citizens directly and have a 
firsthand understanding of EMS services from both a fire/EMT and ambulance service perspective.  
Ms. Jimenez responded to the recruitment of EMS staff.  During her tour of REMSA, Ms. Jimenez 
was left with a feeling of pride at the opportunity to work with an organization that touches so many 
of our citizen lives.  Ms. Jimenez is interested in joining the REMSA Board to give back to the 
community through volunteerism that highlights her professional skills and her personal interests. 

Candidate #4: Morgan, David 
Mr. Morgan had been a practicing CPA for more than 50 years at Pangborn & Co, retiring this past 
August.  Mr. Morgan has been a Board member of over 10 Boards within Washoe County to include, 
Nevada State Board of Accountancy, Reno-Sparks Chamber of Commerce, EDAWN, and Girls 
Scouts of the Sierra.   His experience in the various community organizations has given Mr. Morgan 
an understanding of both governmental and non-profit financial structures and obligations.  Mr. 
Morgan responded to the recruitment of EMS staff.  During his tour of REMSA, Mr. Morgan was left 
with the enthusiasm for the mission of the organization and feels that as a retired CPA, he could 
dedicate the time to the mission and goals of REMSA.  Mr. Morgan is interested in joining the 
REMSA Board to continue his devotion to public service within our community.   

Candidate #5: Nelson, Tim 
Mr. Nelson is a CPA who has held several financial leadership roles since 1986.  Mr. Nelson has held 
positions of Accountant, Controller, Chief Financial Officer, and Chief Executive Officer.  Mr. Nelson 
has served on the Boards of several community organizations to include, SBA’s Nevada Small 
Business Development Center and the Northern Nevada Chapter of the American Red Cross.  With 
his background, Mr. Nelson has an understanding of public accounting, insurance requirements and 
small business.  Mr. Nelson was submitted by REMSA as a possible DBOH appointment.  During his 
tour of REMSA, Mr. Nelson was impressed by the organizational mission and the services provided 
to citizens.  Mr. Nelson is interested in joining the REMSA Board to assist with ensuring REMSA is 
fiscally sound, transparent to the community and continues to respond to the community. 



Subject: REMSA Board of Directors Appointments 
Date: December 18, 2014  
Page 3 of 3 

Each of the five candidates for the CPA Appointed position brings an individual strength that would 
be of benefit to the REMSA Board.  Ms. Carlon brings strength of diverse interactions with other 
professionals.  Mr. Dobrowski brings strength of understanding the intricacies of the healthcare 
industry, having worked for one of the regional hospitals for several years.  Ms. Jimenez brings 
strength of understanding the accounting field as well as the EMS world from her volunteerism.  Mr. 
Morgan brings strength of years of experience and community involvement in various disciplines.  
Mr. Nelson brings strength of a varied background with experience in both insurance brokerage and 
accounting.  One candidate has a working knowledge of EMS but not within Washoe County.   

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no additional fiscal impact to the FY15 budget should the Board approve the appointments to 
the REMSA Board of Directors. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the appointment of (insert name) as the Member of the Accounting Profession 
District Board of Health Appointed Representative to the REMSA Board of Directors.   

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board be prepared to appoint a representative, a possible motion would be: “Move to 
approve the appointment of (insert name) as the Member of the Accounting Profession District Board 
of Health Appointed Representative to the REMSA Board of Directors”.     



DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO.12.A









































































































Debbie Zalmana




























STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2015 

DATE: January 7, 2015 
TO: District Board of Health 

THROUGH: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 

FROM: Brittany Dayton, EMS Coordinator  
326-6043, bdayton@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Presentation, discussion and possible approval of the Regional Emergency 
Medical Services Authority (REMSA) Franchise Compliance Report for 
the period of 7/1/2013 through 6/30/2014 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
SUMMARY 
On an annual basis the District Board of Health (DBOH) is given a staff presentation and 
recommendation for possible action on the REMSA Franchise Compliance Report for the 
previous Fiscal Year. This report is an assessment of REMSA’s adherence to the various 
requirements outlined in the Franchise agreement.  

The FY 13/14 Compliance Report will be the final report on the 2005 Franchise. All future 
compliance reports will be based on the Amended and Restated Franchise Agreement for 
Ambulance Services, which was approved by the DBOH in May 2014 and became effective July 
1, 2014. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
Since the establishment of the REMSA Franchise, the District Board of Health has been 
presented with a REMSA Franchise Compliance Report annually. Since 1986 the DBOH has 
approved the report in terms of REMSA being either compliant, or substantially compliant.  

On March 27, 2014, the Washoe County District Board of Health was presented with the 
Franchise Compliance Report for FY 12/13 and found REMSA in substantial compliance with 
the terms of the Franchise agreement.  

BACKGROUND 
The REMSA Franchise Compliance Report is based on documentation and analysis of data from 
REMSA staff, the Washoe County District Health Officer, the Director of Epidemiology and 
Public Health Preparedness (EPHP), and EMS Program staff. All documentation is available to 
the Washoe County DBOH upon request.  

There are thirty-one (31) sections of the REMSA Franchise agreement dated January 2005. All 
sections were reviewed as part of the annual REMSA compliance report; however, only twenty-
six (26) are auditable in terms of compliance.  

EPIDEMIOLOGY AND PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
EPHP Office: 775-326-6055   I   Fax: 775-325-8130   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13

mailto:bdayton@washoecounty.us


FY 13/14 REMSA Franchise Compliance Report 
January 7, 2015 
Page 2 of 17 

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no additional fiscal impact to the FY 2015 budget should the Board approve the FY 13/14 
REMSA Franchise Compliance Report.  

DESCRIPTION OF FINDINGS BY FRANCHISE SECTION 
Below the sections of the Franchise agreement are in italics followed by a description of the 
EMS Program staff’s findings in standard type. 

1. Governing Body of REMSA

a) The governing body of REMSA (the “REMSA Board”) shall consist of the following:

• One (1) representative from Washoe Medical Center, Inc. (DBA: Renown Regional
Medical Center)

• One (1) representative from Saint Mary’s Regional Medical Center;
• One (1) representative from Northern Nevada Medical Center;
• One (1) consumer appointed by the above three hospital representatives;
• One (1) representative from the legal profession;
• One (1) representative from the accounting profession; and
• One (1) consumer representative appointed by District Board of Health.

► REMSA met the requirement.

As identified below, the REMSA Board consisted of the appropriate representatives outlined in the 
Franchise agreement:  

REMSA Board Members 
July 1, 2013 – June 30, 2014 

Name Organization Appointed By 
Greg Boyer CEO, Renown Regional Medical 

Center 
N/A 

Helen Lidholm CEO, St. Mary’s Regional 
Medical Center 

N/A 

Tiffany Coury COO, Northern Nevada Medical 
Center 

N/A 

Steven Brown Consultant/Investor Appointed by 
the  Hospital 
Representatives 

Louis Test Hoffman, Test, Guinan & Collier 
– Legal Representative

District Board 
of Health 

Richard Barnard Barnard, Vogler & Company – 
Accounting Representative 

District Board 
of Health 

James Begbie Consumer Representative District Board 
of Health 



FY 13/14 REMSA Franchise Compliance Report 
January 7, 2015 
Page 3 of 17 

Additionally, the Washoe County District Health Officer sat as an ex-officio member of the REMSA 
Board. 

b) Any contract, transaction or renewal of such relationship involving a member of the REMSA
Board shall be reviewed and approved by a majority of the disinterested members of the REMSA
Board to assure that such contract or transaction is bona fide, at arm’s length and in the best
interests of REMSA.

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA’s legal counsel, Drinkwater Law Offices, verified in a letter to the Washoe County District 
Health Officer dated November 13, 2014 that “All contractual relationships involving a member of the 
REMSA Board have been approved by a majority of the disinterested members of the REMSA 
Board.” 

2. Board Meetings

a) The REMSA Board shall meet at least once each calendar month to conduct operations and fiscal
oversight and to develop, monitor and amend the policies and procedures for REMSA in the
provision of ambulance services.

► REMSA met the requirement.

The REMSA Board convened once a month during FY 13/14 for a total of twelve (12) board 
meetings.  

b) Any REMSA Board member who misses three consecutive REMSA Board meetings may be
required by the REMSA Board to relinquish membership and may be replaced by the entity which
made the original appointment.

► Not an auditable item.

While this is not an auditable item, REMSA submitted a letter to the DHO stating that no Board 
member missed three or more consecutive meetings during FY 13/14.  

3. Competitive Bid Process

It is acknowledged that REMSA has complied with Sections 3 and 5 of the Franchise Designation, 
approved October 26, 1986, and as previously amended, in that REMSA successfully established 
interim ground and rotary wing ambulance services and subsequently completed a competitive 
bidding process for the continuation of a sole ground ambulance service within the time periods 
specified. 

► Not applicable to audit.



FY 13/14 REMSA Franchise Compliance Report 
January 7, 2015 
Page 4 of 17 

4. Marking of Ambulance Units

All ambulance units either directly operated by REMSA or by a vendor, shall be marked with REMSA 
identity rather than the individual business identity of any ambulance service vendor or contractor. 

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA verified in a written statement that “all ambulance units either directly operated by REMSA, 
or by a vendor, are marked with REMSA” for the FY 13/14. EMS Program staff also completed “spot 
checks” of ambulances throughout the Fiscal Year to confirm that all units had a REMSA emblem. 
EMS Program staff found that all checked ambulances were appropriately marked.   

5. Periodic Competitive Bid Requirement at Least Every Seven Years

During the term of this designation, REMSA may undertake additional competitive bidding 
procedures or market surveys as it deems necessary to ensure that the services provided under their 
vendor contract(s) are the most medically efficient and as economical for the consumer as possible, 
but in no case shall any contract(s) with a vendor(s) extend beyond a total of seven (7) years, 
commencing from July 1, 1988, without conducting such an open competitive bidding process or 
market survey. 

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA conducted and completed a market study in lieu of a competitive bid process in May 2010. A 
contract was renewed with their contractor (RASI) in July 1, 2010. 

6. Transports and Inter-facility Transfers

All transports or transfers of sick or injured persons, whose condition may require medical 
observation or care, including patients who require transport or transfer on a stretcher, by ground or 
rotary wing ambulance units must be accomplished at the advanced life support (“ALS”) level.  

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA verified in a written statement that “all transports or transfers of sick or injured persons 
whose condition may require medical observation or care, by ground or rotary wing ambulance units, 
were accomplished at the advanced life support (ALS) level” in FY 13/14. 

In addition, REMSA submitted a copy of their State of Nevada permits (see number 25 of the FY 
13/14 Franchise Compliance Report) for ground and air ambulances, which indicate that REMSA is 
licensed for ALS commercial service.  

7. Performance Bond and Three-Way Lease

REMSA shall insure service performance security with the existence of either (a) a liquidated 
damages type of performance bond issued by an insurance company, (b) a letter of credit issued by a 



FY 13/14 REMSA Franchise Compliance Report 
January 7, 2015 
Page 5 of 17 

bank for a minimum of $200,000 secured by itself and/or (c) an immediate contractual right of offset 
against its ground ambulance, dispatch, and rotary wing vendor(s) (the “Service Performance 
Security”). Such minimum Service Performance Security amount may be reevaluated following 
analysis for actual operation expenditure needs and adjusted by action of the District Board of 
Health. 

All equipment utilized by REMSA ground ambulance service or its contracted vendor(s) shall be made 
available to the District Board of Health through a three-way lease or an alternate method as 
approved by the District Board of Health in the event that REMSA or its contract vendor(s) are 
unable to provide the required services or loses its contract or franchise designation or its contract is 
terminated.  

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA’s legal counsel, Drinkwater Law Offices, verified in a letter dated November 13, 2014 to the 
Washoe County District Health Officer that “The current Advanced Life Support (ALS) Ambulance 
Services Contract, dated July 1, 2010, by and between REMSA and Regional Ambulance Services 
Inc. (“RASI”), REMSA’s contractor, contains a contractual right of offset in excess of the $200,000 as 
required in Section 7 of the Franchise Agreement.”  REMSA owns all equipment; therefore, no three-
way leases exist.  

REMSA also provided the EMS Program a detailed inventory list of all organizational vehicles and 
capital equipment, such as monitors, power cots, stair chairs, etc.  

8. Medical Radio Communications Dispatch Facility and Backup Emergency System

REMSA shall operate or cause to be operated a radio communications dispatch facility which is 
compatible with the existing emergency medical services (“EMS”) radio network and with the 911 
systems operated by Reno, Sparks and Washoe County. Operational drills on the “back up” system 
shall be conducted on a semi-annual basis. REMSA shall provide documentation of compliance to the 
District Board of Health annually. 

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA conducted drills/tests of its back-up communication system on the following dates: 

• July 30 and 31, 2013 - test
• September 17 and 18, 2013 - test
• November 18, 2013 - test
• March 4, 2014 - test
• April 8, 2014 - drill

The April 8, 2014 drill occurred during a planned CAD upgrade; this upgrade moved REMSA from 
the VisiCAD to the InformCAD platform on TriTech. The EMS program received an AAR of this 
drill that included the positive occurrences during the exercise as well as improvements to be made to 
enhance the back-up system.  



FY 13/14 REMSA Franchise Compliance Report 
January 7, 2015 
Page 6 of 17 

Furthermore, REMSA provided documentation from NVEnergy that their offsite back-up 
communication system lease was extended until December 31, 2015. 

9. Response Requirement of Eight (8) Minutes 90% of the Time for Life Threatening Calls in
the City of Reno and Sparks, and Within Established Time Limits for Specific Areas of the
County

REMSA shall insure that 90% of all presumptively defined life threatening calls within the 
incorporated boundaries of Reno and Sparks are responded to within eight (8) minutes and that 90% 
of all presumptively defined life threatening calls within unincorporated Washoe County shall be 
responded to in accordance with the time limits established for the specified map grids as mutually 
agreed to. Those specific map grids and assigned response time limits may be adjusted by the District 
Health Officer after periodic analysis of operational and response data.  The District Health Officer 
shall present such revisions to the District Board of Health as a consent agenda item. A map 
reflecting current response zones will be available for review in the office of the District Health 
Officer. 

A “life threatening call” shall be considered those defined as priority one by the medical dispatch 
protocol. 

Response time is defined as the time period from receipt of the patient location, condition and 
telephone call back number until the ALS unit reports on scene, which is when the ground vehicle has 
come to a complete stop, or when the helicopter has notified dispatch that it has landed. 

► REMSA met the requirement.

The REMSA Response Area Map is available for review online on the Washoe County GIS Quick 
Map, and a printed version of the map is accessible in the offices of the Washoe County District 
Health Officer, EMS Program Manager and EMS Coordinator. 

EMS Program staff performed an external verification of REMSA’s compliance with the response 
time requirements in the Franchise by analyzing the data reported to the EMS Program by REMSA. 
For the months of July 2013 – February 2014, EMS Program staff worked with County GIS to 
identify the appropriate response zones for all Priority 1 calls. All addresses were Geocoded according 
to the response zone shape files.  

The above-identified process was not necessary for March 2014 – June 2014 because REMSA 
provided the response zone data as part of their monthly dispatch/response report. The WCHD 
requested that response zone information be provided as part of the required monthly REMSA report 
beginning March 2014. 

The REMSA Operations Reports for FY 13/14 indicate that REMSA was in compliance with the 
response time requirements for priority 1 calls each month of the Fiscal Year. EMS Program staff 
conducted an independent analysis of REMSA’s monthly compliance by identifying the number of 
non-compliant calls in the 8, 15 and 20 minute zones (based on the standard of 8:29, 15:29 and 20:29) 
and the total number of calls in each zone.  



FY 13/14 REMSA Franchise Compliance Report 
January 7, 2015 
Page 7 of 17 

Below are the percentages that were reported to the DBOH each month by REMSA, as well as EMS 
Program staff’s compliance calculations. 

Monthly Compliance Percentages 
July 2013 – June 2014 

Month REMSA 
Reported 

Compliance 

EMS Program 
Staff Compliance 

July 2013 92% 91.6% 
August 2013 93% 92.9% 

September 2013 93% 93.1% 
October 2013 92% 91.9% 

November 2013 94% 94.1% 
December 2013 91% 90.9% 
January 2014 91% 90.8% 
February 2014 92% 91.7% 
March 2014 93% 92.9% 
April 2014 93% 92.6% 
May 2014 91% 90.7% 
June 2014 92% 91.9% 

EMS Program staff calculated REMSA’s overall FY 13/14 response time compliance to be 92.1 
percent. 

10. Response Time Penalties

a) For each and every call that does not meet the required response time and for which there are not
extenuating circumstances either approved by the District Health Officer, or which meet exception
criteria established by REMSA and approved by the District Health Officer, a penalty of $10.00
per minute (or portion thereof) shall be assessed for each call that does not meet the required
response time, up to a maximum of $150.00 per call. Effective July 1, 1995, REMSA shall increase
its penalty amounts for all established late responses each year by an amount equal to one-
hundred percent (100%) of the annually allowed consumer price index {U.S. City Average-All
Urban Consumers (1982-84=100)} (“CPI”) increase.

► REMSA met the requirement.

The penalty amount per minute based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for FY 13/14 was $17.68. 
The penalty amount per minute for FY 12/13 was $17.11.  

The total late time assessed for Priority 1 calls for FY 13/14 was 3,341 minutes. The penalty funds 
collected were $59,068.88. REMSA also presented information about the penalty fund and the 
expenditures at the December 2014 DBOH meeting.  

b) Response time exemptions shall be reported monthly to the District Health Officer.



FY 13/14 REMSA Franchise Compliance Report 
January 7, 2015 
Page 8 of 17 

► REMSA met the requirement.

The total number of system responses for FY 13/14 was 66,746, while the total number of system 
transports was 40,962.  

The Washoe County District Health Officer received seven (7) monthly exemption reports (there were 
no exemption requests in September, November, April, May and June). Seventeen (17) non-
annexation exemptions were granted:  

• 5 isolated weather
• 1 blanket weather
• 5 priority upgrades
• 3 incorrect address
• 1 construction related
• 1 off-road
• 1 miscellaneous (includes but not limited to second unit on scene)

In FY 13/14 REMSA also requested an exemption for an individual that used the ambulance service 
excessively throughout the year, based on the miscellaneous provision in the exemption guidelines. 
However, after review, the District Health Officer denied this request.  

The District Health Officer also received twelve (12) monthly annexation/study-area reports which 
included 248 calls. Of those calls, 156 would have been considered late within the assigned response 
zone.  

c) These penalties shall be placed in a separate restricted account of REMSA and shall be used to
help defray the costs of operational or educational matters subject to prior written approval by the
District Health Officer. The penalty fund shall be solvent at the end of REMSA’s fiscal year.

► REMSA met the requirement.

The District Health Officer received a request on October 7, 2013 from REMSA for the penalty funds 
dollars for FY 13/14 to be utilized for safety, health and injury prevention programs. The Washoe 
County District Health Officer approved all expenditures in a letter dated November 12, 2013 to 
REMSA’s Chief Financial Officer.   

The Washoe County District Health Officer received a letter from the REMSA CFO on March 5, 
2014 confirming “the penalty fund is held in a separate restricted account and the account is solvent.” 

Cupit, Milligan, Ogden & Williams completed an independent accountant’s report entitled “Agreed-
Upon Procedures Related to Priority 1 Penalty Fund” as part of REMSA’s annual audit. This report 
reviews and identifies the agreed-upon procedures between REMSA and the WCHD as well as the 
penalty fund expenditures. The report concluded that there is no carry-over to 2014-2015 for this 
account.   



FY 13/14 REMSA Franchise Compliance Report 
January 7, 2015 
Page 9 of 17 

11. Average Bill Approval and Overages, CPI Adjustments, Ambulance Subscription Program,
and Submission of Current Rates and Charges

a) The District Board of Health shall approve the amount of the maximum average patient bill for
ground and rotary wing ambulance transport commencing and terminating within the franchise
area of Washoe County to be charged by REMSA, from time to time, upon written application by
REMSA. Such maximum average patient bills approved by the District Board of Health shall be
automatically adjusted thereafter for any change in the CPI for the preceding year without further
District Board of Health action. The District Health Officer shall inform REMSA at least annually
in writing with regard to the CPI adjustment amount as determined above.

► REMSA met the requirement.

In May each year, WCHD staff calculates the Consumer Price Index (CPI) adjustment based on the 
appropriate CPI data for the preceding 12 months and forwards this information to REMSA in 
writing.   

A letter dated June 3, 2013 from the Washoe County District Health Officer to REMSA verifies the 
annual review of the CPI was completed. This review resulted in increases in the FY 13/14 ground 
average bill from $1,033 to $1,067 and the Care Flight average bill from $7,393 to $7,641. 

b) REMSA shall be responsible for determining and setting, from time to time, the various rates, fees
and charges which comprise the patient’s bill for ground and rotary wing ambulance transport
and within ten (10) days of such determination, REMSA shall provide the District Health Officer
in writing a current schedule of rates, charges and fees for ground and rotary wing ambulance
transport within the franchise area of Washoe County. Such schedule of rates, charges, and fees
determined by REMSA shall not cause the average patient’s bill for ground and rotary wing
ambulance transport within the franchise area to exceed the amount of the maximum average
patient bill then in effect as approved by the District Board of Health.

► REMSA met the requirement.

A letter dated July 8, 2013 from REMSA to the Washoe County District Health Officer gave notice of 
a new rate schedule which became effective on July 1, 2013.  

The rate changes for ground ambulance included a $35 increase in the emergency base rate, a $27 
increase in the routine base rate and a $1 increase in the mileage rate. The rate changes for Care Flight 
included a $257 increase in the Washoe County helicopter base rate and a $2 increase in the mileage 
rate.  

c) In setting and adjusting such rates, charges, and fees for round ambulance transport within the
franchise area, REMSA shall utilize its best efforts to maximize third party reimbursement and
minimize transported patients’ out-of-pocket expense as insurance and governmental
reimbursement laws, regulations and procedures change from time to time. Unless otherwise
prohibited by law, REMSA shall maintain a voluntary prepaid ambulance subscription
membership program within the franchise area of Washoe County to defray the uninsured portion



FY 13/14 REMSA Franchise Compliance Report 
January 7, 2015 
Page 10 of 17 

of medically necessary ambulance transport within the franchise area of Washoe County. The 
District Board of Health shall establish the limit for the number of times this service may be used 
by an individual in a membership year. 

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA continues to maintain its subscription program for ground ambulance services.  REMSA 
provided a copy of its FY 13/14 Silver Saver brochure to document its compliance with this section. 
The Washoe County District Board of Health established the limit of ten (10) for the number of times 
this service may be used by an individual in a membership year.  REMSA reported that no households 
exceeded the transport limit under the Silver Saver Program in FY 13/14. 

12. Billing and Receipts

REMSA may do all billing of patients and third party payers for ambulance services provided or 
allow a vendor to do so. In either case, all receipts shall be handled by a process approved by the 
District Board of Health and in accordance with the business arrangements established by the 
REMSA Board.  

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA verified in a written statement that “ REMSA does its own billing and all receipts are 
handled by a process approved by the District Board of Health and in accordance with the business 
arrangements established by the REMSA Board.” 

13. Annual Independent Financial Audits, IRS Form 990, Agreed-Upon Procedures

REMSA shall conform to all generally acceptable accounting practices (“GAAP”) and shall have an 
annual, independent financial audit prepared according to generally accepted auditing standards 
(“GAAS”). REMSA will provide a copy of the financial audit and the Internal Revenue Service Form 
990 within 180 days of the close of its fiscal year to the District Health Officer. The independent 
auditing firm will be selected by REMSA and such firm must be subject to peer review. In addition to 
the normal scope of the independent audit, the independent auditing firm will perform “agreed upon 
procedures” on the average bill and on specific franchise issues as agreed to by REMSA and the 
District Health Officer. 

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA provided a copy of the financial audit from Cupit, Milligan, Ogden & Williams on 
December 23, 2014 for FY 13/14, which is within the 180-day compliance time frame.   

REMSA provided a copy of the IRS Form 990 for FY 12/13 on May 12, 2014. The IRS Form 990 is 
based on a calendar year; therefore, the FY 13/14 report was not available at the time of this report. It 
is expected to be completed by spring 2015.       



FY 13/14 REMSA Franchise Compliance Report 
January 7, 2015 
Page 11 of 17 

14. Dispatch and Field Cross Exposure/Orientation

All personnel within the REMSA dispatch facility shall receive at least three (3) hours annual 
orientation to and participate as an observer in the field activities of REMSA ambulance services. All 
field ambulance personnel shall receive at least three (3) hours annual orientation to and observe the 
dispatch center operations. REMSA shall provide documentation of compliance to the District Board 
of Health annually. 

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA provided the internal policy and procedures for cross-training staff as well as lists of trained 
staff. Nineteen (19) communications/dispatch employees completed three (3) hours of annual field 
training. Two-hundred thirteen (213) field employees completed three (3) hours of annual dispatch 
training.  

15. Dispatcher Training

All personnel within the REMSA dispatch facility shall be trained at the intermediate emergency 
medical technician (“EMT II”) level or trained at the advanced emergency medical technician 
“(paramedic”) level. All medical dispatch personnel shall maintain certification as Emergency 
Medical Dispatchers (EMDs) from the National Academy of Emergency Medical Dispatchers. New 
dispatch personnel shall receive training during their first six (6) months of employment that meets the 
standards of the Department of Transportation emergency medical dispatcher (“EMD”) certification 
and the Association of Air Medical Services. REMSA shall provide documentation of compliance to 
the District Board of Health annually. 

► REMSA met the requirement.

The Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health, 
Emergency Medical Systems Program confirmed in a letter dated November 3, 2014 that REMSA’s 
staff was in compliance in regards to NRS 450B and NAC 450B requirements pertaining to 
certification and licensure for FY 13/14.  

16. Monthly CPR Courses for the Public, Annual Multimedia Public Education Campaign

REMSA shall offer cardiopulmonary resuscitation (“CPR”) courses at least monthly to the public. At 
least annually, REMSA shall conduct a multimedia campaign, using radio, television, printed media, 
or promotional displays to educate the public. The educational focus will alternate each year between 
the topic of how to access 911 and injury prevention/health promotion. The District Health 
Department will assist and participate in such activities. 

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA submitted the following Fiscal Year summary of CPR classes. Classes included but were not 
limited to: CPR, Health Care Provider CPR, Heart Saver CPR/AED, Heart Saver CPR/First Aid, and 
Heart Saver Pediatric CPR/First Aid.  



FY 13/14 REMSA Franchise Compliance Report 
January 7, 2015 
Page 12 of 17 

REMSA CPR Classes 
July 2013 – June 2014 

2013 No. of CPR Classes No. of Students 
July 198 882 
August 197 991 
September 187 885 
October 225 1,329 
November 176 931 
December 138 808 
2014 No. of CPR Classes No. of Students 
January 230 1,411 
February 197 937 
March 265 1,593 
April 175 953 
May 179 1,078 
June 211 1,155 
Total 2378 12,953 

REMSA conducted several multimedia campaigns to educate the public on illness and injury 
prevention in FY 13/14. Some multimedia campaigns include:  

• REMSA was part of the Safe Sleep radio spot and online media to promote Cribs for Kids
and the importance of safe sleep for infants.

• REMSA launched multimedia/press release campaigns about the National Child
Passenger Safety Week, SIDS Awareness Month, Emergency Medical Dispatchers’ week,
EMS week, etc.

• REMSA held multiple press conferences regarding the promotion of the Nurse Health
Line.

• REMSA supported the Not Even for a Minute campaign to educate the public about not
leaving children alone in hot cars.

The WCHD staff have assisted or participated in some of REMSA’s activities for injury prevention 
and health promotion. 

17. Field Supervisory Support/Medical Disaster Training of Staff and Management

REMSA shall insure that a field supervisor be on each shift. REMSA shall insure that all of its medical 
personnel are trained in the Multiple Casualty Incident Plan (“MCIP”) and that all of its 
management personnel are trained to the command level.  

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA provided lists of personnel who completed the Multi-Casualty Incident (MCI) and Incident 
Command System (ICS) trainings: 

• MCI training - 241



FY 13/14 REMSA Franchise Compliance Report 
January 7, 2015 
Page 13 of 17 

• ICS 100 - 247
• ICS 200 - 245
• ICS 300 - 17
• ICS 400 - 8
• ICS 700 - 238
• ICS 800 - 22

REMSA verified in a written statement that “a field supervisor is on each shift; all medical personnel 
have been trained in the Multi-Casualty Incident Plan; and all management personnel are trained to the 
command level.” 

18. Medical Direction

REMSA shall appoint a physician(s) to be the medical director(s) (“Medical Director”) in 
accordance with the requirements in Nevada Revised Statutes and the Nevada Administrative Code.  

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA provided a Curriculum Vitae of Bradford H. Lee, MD and verified in a written statement that 
“REMSA’s Medical Director is in compliance with the requirements in Nevada Revised Statutes and 
the Nevada Administrative Code.” 

19. Medical Quality Control Coordination

REMSA shall designate an individual(s) to be responsible for the internal coordination of its medical 
quality control issues. 

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA verified in a written statement that “Diane Rolfs, RN, MSN, oversaw coordination of both 
ground and air ambulance Quality Assurance (QA) activities during the reporting period.” 

20. Quality Assurance Reviews of Runs

Each calendar month REMSA shall conduct quality assurance reviews of ambulance runs from 
among at least 5% of the previous month’s ALS calls. Those reviews should involve, if possible, the 
ambulance personnel who participated on those cases, including the emergency room physician, and 
shall be conducted by the designated REMSA coordinator(s) of medical quality issues. A summary of 
those quality assurance review activities shall be included in the required monthly operations report 
forwarded to the District Board of Health. 

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA verified in a written statement that “In REMSA’s monthly [operations] report, the total 
number of transports is listed, along with the total number of PCRs (Patient Care Reports) that were 



FY 13/14 REMSA Franchise Compliance Report 
January 7, 2015 
Page 14 of 17 

reviewed that month as part of the Medical Director’s report. This is to affirm that during FY 2014, 
this number met or exceeded the 5% required to be reviewed.” 

Furthermore, in accordance with a request by EMS Program staff, REMSA updated the Medical 
Director’s Report in April 2014 to include the actual percentage of charts that were reviewed by the 
Medical Director and/or QA personnel.  

21. Formal Educational Opportunities to Be Sponsored By REMSA Four Times Annually

At least four (4) times annually, REMSA will sponsor formal educational opportunities for pre-
hospital care personnel as recommended by REMSA’s Medical Director or the District Health 
Department. REMSA shall offer its monthly continuing education programs to all pre-hospital care 
personnel in the Washoe County Health District. REMSA shall provide documentation of compliance 
to the District Board of Health annually. 

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA offers monthly continuing education programs, open to all pre-hospital care personnel in the 
Washoe County Health District. Information about all educational courses is available online at 
remsaeducation.com. 

A list of the education programs offered is reported to the Washoe County District Board of Health 
monthly in the REMSA Operations Report.   

REMSA sponsored multiple Advanced Cardiac Life Support (ACLS) certification and recertification 
courses, Pediatric Advanced Life Support (PALS) certification and recertification courses, Basic Life 
Support Instructor courses, and Neonatal Resuscitation courses in FY 13/14.  

Additionally, REMSA sponsored fifteen (15) different courses/seminars in FY 13/14 that targeted pre-
hospital care personnel ranging from assessment and management of mild traumatic brain injuries to 
stemi care to capnography.  

22. Clinical Skill Experience Opportunities through Participating Hospitals

REMSA, upon recommendation of its designated coordinator(s) of medical quality issues, REMSA’s 
Medical Director or the District Health Department, shall facilitate opportunities for clinical skill 
experience for specific pre-hospital care personnel through the clinical services of its participating 
hospitals.  

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA verified in a written statement that “opportunities for clinical skill experience for specific 
pre-hospital care personnel have been made available through the clinical services of its participating 
hospitals during the reporting period.” 



FY 13/14 REMSA Franchise Compliance Report 
January 7, 2015 
Page 15 of 17 

According to Diane Rolfs, MS, RN, Director of Education and CQI/CNO, REMSA did not need to 
utilize their partner hospitals in FY 13/14 for the remediation of employees in clinical skills; however 
staff has participated in continuing education opportunities at partner hospitals. 

23. Section repealed.

24. Monthly Reports on Operational Activities and Average Bill

REMSA shall provide the DBOH a monthly report on operational activities including the average 
amount of the patient bill and proposed increases to the average patient bill and the report shall be in 
a format directed by the Board. 

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA submitted the monthly REMSA Operations Report on time to the DBOH during the FY 
13/14. 

25. REMSA's Compliance with All Applicable Rules/Regulations

REMSA and all of its subsidiaries shall comply with the provisions of law pertaining to business 
licensure within Reno, Sparks and Washoe County, with Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 450B, 
Nevada Administrative Code Chapter 450B, and with all other applicable provisions of law.  

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA submitted copies of the following business licenses: 

REMSA Business Licenses 
July 1, 2013 – June 30, 2014 

Organization License/Permit Number 
City of Reno 91584 
State of Nevada EMS 16 302 REMSA Care Flight 
State of Nevada EMS 16 323 REMSA Ground 
City of Sparks 049699 
Washoe County 14967 B1301072 

The Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public and Behavioral Health, 
Emergency Medical Systems Program confirmed in a letter dated November 3, 2014 that REMSA 
was in compliance with NRS 450B and NAC 450B for FY 13/14.  

26. REMSA’s Annual Compliance Report and WCHD Monitoring of REMSA

REMSA will report annually to the District Health Department its compliance with these 
organizational, performance and operational criteria within one hundred eighty (180) days of the end 
of REMSA’s fiscal year. REMSA will also be monitored by the District Health Department for 
compliance and monitoring data will be provided to the District Health Officer. The District Health 



FY 13/14 REMSA Franchise Compliance Report 
January 7, 2015 
Page 16 of 17 

Officer shall report on REMSA’s annual performance to the District Board of Health within ninety 
(90) days of the beginning of each calendar year. The District Health Department will periodically 
report to Reno, Sparks and Washoe County and the District Board of Health on that compliance. 

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA met the 180-day requirement of submitting documentation by December 31, 2014. REMSA 
submitted identified items and required documentation several times throughout the year. The final 
audit items were received by the WCHD on December 23, 2014.   

The Washoe County District Health Officer includes the monthly REMSA Operational Reports to all 
Washoe County District Board of Health members in the Board Packet prior to each meeting. 
REMSA is on the agenda to present the report and answer questions at each regularly scheduled 
Washoe County District Board of Health meeting. 

27. Subsidy by Political Jurisdictions

The granting of this exclusive right to operate ambulance services does not carry any obligation on 
the part of the District Board of Health, the Cities of Reno and Sparks and Washoe County for any 
type of monetary subsidy. Costs for REMSA must be borne by REMSA, which is self-supporting.  

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA verified in a written statement that “no monetary subsidy has been received from the Cities 
of Reno and Sparks and Washoe County. Costs for REMSA are borne by REMSA, which is self-
supporting.” 

28. REMSA’s Exclusive Right to Operate Until July 1, 2006; Possible Penalties for REMSA’s
Noncompliance with Franchise Requirements and Appeal Rights

► Not an auditable item.

29. Any Future Service Agreements with Other Political Entities Not to Impact This Systems
Funding of Costs

In the event that REMSA enters into service agreements with any other political entity, such service 
agreements shall be negotiated in such a way that the new system would fund its share of the costs of 
providing the service and shall not deplete or negatively impact the provision of service with the 
designated franchise area described herein. 

► REMSA met the requirement.

REMSA verified in a written statement that “there are no new service agreements with any political 
entities other than the existing mutual aid agreements.” 



FY 13/14 REMSA Franchise Compliance Report 
January 7, 2015 
Page 17 of 17 

30. Assumption of REMSA Central Facility by a Future Contractor

► Not an auditable item.

31. Clause to Allow Amendments

► Not an auditable item.

No amendments were made to the REMSA Franchise in FY 13/14. This will be the final Franchise 
Compliance Report of the 2005 Franchise. 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Washoe County Health District’s EMS Program staff recommends the DBOH find REMSA 
in compliance with the terms of the Franchise agreement for FY 13/14.  

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the DBOH agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be: “Move to approve 
the REMSA Franchise Compliance Report as presented and find REMSA in compliance with the 
Franchise agreement for the period of 7/1/2013 through 6/30/2014.” 

______________________________ 
Kevin Dick 
Washoe County District Health Officer 

Cc: WCHD EMS Program Files  



STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer  
775.328.2416, kdick@washoecounty.us 

THROUGH:  Kitty Jung, DBOH Chair 

SUBJECT: Possible reappointment of Dr. George Hess to the District Board of Health for a 
second term beginning January 2015 and ending December 2018. 

SUMMARY 
District Board of Health must appoint or reappoint a physician licensed to practice medicine in the 
State of Nevada.  Dr. George Hess is eligible for reappointment and has indicated his willingness to 
serve another term.   

District Health Strategic Objective supported by this item:  Demonstrate the value and 
contribution of public health, strengthen District-wide infrastructure to improve public health, secure 
and deploy resources for sustainable impact, and strengthen WCHD as an innovative, high- 
performing organization  

PREVIOUS ACTION 
Dr. Hess was originally appointed to the District Board of Health in June of 2011 to complete the 
unexpired term of Dr. Amy Khan, whose appointment expired December 31, 2014.    

BACKGROUND 
The District Board of Health must appoint or reappoint a physician licensed to practice medicine in 
the State of Nevada.   

Dr. George Hess serves as the Board’s physician appointee in accordance with the requirements of 
Nevada Revised Statutes 439.390 and the Interlocal Agreement, Section 2, Subsection D.  Dr. Hess 
was originally appointed to the District Board of Health in June of 2011, to complete the unexpired 
term of Dr. Amy Khan, whose appointment expired December 31, 2014. He is eligible for 
reappointment and has indicated a desire to serve another term.   

FISCAL IMPACT 
Should the Board reappoint Dr. Hess, there is no additional fiscal impact to the FY15 budget. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board wish to reappoint Dr. Hess a possible motion would be, “I move that Dr. Hess be 
reappointed to the District Board of Health for a second term, beginning January 2015 and ending 
December 2018.” 

OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
ODHO Phone: 775-328-2416   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 14

mailto:kdick@washoecounty.us


STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer  
775.328.2416, kdick@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Presentation of significant findings of the Washoe County Community Health 
Needs Assessment. 

SUMMARY 
Washoe County Health District collaborated with Renown Health to conduct a Community Health 
Needs Assessment.  Washoe County Social Services and Charles Schwab Bank also contributed 
financial support for the assessment.  The assessment was conducted by the Nevada Public Health 
Foundation’s Independent Contractor, Heather Kerwin. 

District Health Strategic Objective supported by this item:  Demonstrate the value and 
contribution of public health, strengthen District-wide infrastructure to improve public health, secure 
and deploy resources for sustainable impact, and strengthen WCHD as an innovative, high- 
performing organization 

Fundamental Review Recommendation 14: Conduct a community health assessment in concert 
with current partner organizations for the Washoe County Health District and constituent 
communities. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
The Health District Fundamental Review recommendation 14 was to conduct a community health 
assessment in concert with current partner organizations for the Washoe County Health District and 
constituent communities.  DBOH approved implementation of this recommendation during the March 
27, 2014 meeting.  A contract with the Health District, Renown Health, and the NPHF to conduct the 
assessment was signed in May 2014.    

BACKGROUND 
Seventy percent of local health districts nationally have conducted a Community Health Assessment 
within the last five years.  Nor-for-profit hospitals are required to conduct a Community Health Needs 
Assessment (CHNA) every three years and a growing proportion of local health districts are working 
collaboratively to conduct Community Health Assessments.  The Washoe County CHNA compiled 
extensive secondary data to provide statistics on health status and health indicators in Washoe County, 
and conducted focus groups, surveys, and meetings with subject matter experts to collect primary data 
on health needs of the community.  The executive summary of the CHNA organizes key findings into 
these broad categories: 

• Health outcomes, health behaviors and historic trends; 

• Demographic and socioeconomic overview with comments on key populations; 

OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
ODHO Phone: 775-328-2416   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 15



Subject: Community Health Assessment Report 
Date: January 22, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 
 
• Access to health care; 

• Health disparities; and, 

• Education. 

These findings were presented at the recent Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities Conference. The 
entire CHNA is available at:  http://www.washoecounty.us/repository/files/4/community-health-
needs-assessment.pdf 

The hope is that this CHNA will serve as a resource to understand and improve the health of our 
community.  The CHNA finds will be used to develop a Community Health Improvement Plan. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Should the Board approve staff’s recommendation, there is no additional fiscal impact to the FY15 
budget. 

 

 

 

 

http://www.washoecounty.us/repository/files/4/community-health-needs-assessment.pdf
http://www.washoecounty.us/repository/files/4/community-health-needs-assessment.pdf


STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: January 22, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer 
328-2417, aheenan@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund Financial Review for Fiscal Year 2015 
year to date December 31, 2014 

SUMMARY 

The first six months of the fiscal year 2015 (FY15) ended with a cash balance of $1.2 million.  Total 
revenues were $8.4 million, 43.5% of budget and an increase of 22.9% compared to fiscal year 2014 
(FY14).  The Health Fund received $4.3 million from the County General Fund to help cover costs for 
the first half of the fiscal year.  With 50.0% of the fiscal year completed the expenditures totaled $9.6 
million, 46.3% of the budget and 3.9% more than FY14.  Salaries and benefits continue to be the single 
largest category increase over FY14 at an increase of $438,777, 6.5%, for a total cost of $7.2 million.   

District Health Strategic Objective supported:  Secure and deploy resources for sustainable impact. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 

Fiscal Year 2015 Budget was adopted May 19, 2014. 

BACKGROUND 

Review of Cash 
The available cash at the end 
of the six months of FY15 was 
$1,209,992 which was 69.8% 
of the average budgeted 
monthly cash outflow of $1.7 
million and up 55.3%, 
$430,779, compared to FY14.  
The County General Fund has 
transferred $4.3 million for the 
year, 51.4% of the total 
revenue for the fiscal year. 

Note: December FY13 negative cash is due to 50%, $1.3million, of the County Overhead being 
charged in December with just 8.3%, $719,000, of the County Support being transferred to the fund.

 $(1,000,000)
 $(500,000)

 $-
 $500,000

 $1,000,000
 $1,500,000
 $2,000,000
 $2,500,000
 $3,000,000
 $3,500,000
 $4,000,000

Beg Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Trend of Available Cash

FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 16

mailto:aheenan@washoecounty.us


Date: DBOH meeting January 22, 2015 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2015, December Financial Review 
Page 2 of 4 

Review of Revenues (including transfers from General fund) and Expenditures by category 

Revenues for FY15 year to date 
December of $8.4 million were up 
$1.6 million, 22.9%, from the same 
time last fiscal year and were 43.5% 
of budget.  The following revenue 
categories were down: charges for 
services by 1.1%, $6,721; and 
miscellaneous revenue by 64.3%, 
$34,445.  The revenue categories 
that are up over last fiscal year are as 
follows:  federal and state grants by 
7.1%, $144,938; licenses and permits 
by 0.7%, $4,817; tire fees and 
pollution control fees by 8.3%, 
$46,018; and General Fund support 
by 48.9%, $1.4 million.   

Expenditures of $9.6 million for 
year to date December increased 
3.9%, $364,497, compared to the 
same time frame for last fiscal year 
2014.  Salaries and benefits 
expenditures for the six months of 
FY15 were $7.2 million, 6.5% 
increase, $438,777, over the prior 
year.  Salaries and benefits are 
74.4% of the total expenditures for 
the fiscal year.  Total services and 
supplies of $2.5 million were down 
$15,773, 0.6%, over fiscal year 
2014.  Capital spent year to date 
was a little under $8,000 at $7,961.   

 $-
 $1,000,000
 $2,000,000
 $3,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $5,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $7,000,000
 $8,000,000
 $9,000,000

Revenues
FY15 December Year to Date

 $-
 $2,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000
 $12,000,000
 $14,000,000
 $16,000,000
 $18,000,000
 $20,000,000

FY 12
Actual

FY 13
Actual

FY 14
Actual

FY 15
Budget

 FY15 Dec
Year to

Date

Revenues 
(including General Fund support)

GF Operating Support Grants
GF Overhead Subsidy Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits Tires & Pollution Control
Miscellaneous

 $-
 $1,000,000
 $2,000,000
 $3,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $5,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $7,000,000
 $8,000,000
 $9,000,000

 $10,000,000

Expenditures
FY15 December Year to Date

 $-
 $2,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000
 $12,000,000
 $14,000,000
 $16,000,000
 $18,000,000
 $20,000,000
 $22,000,000

FY 12
Actual

FY 13
Actual

FY 14
Actual

FY 15
Budget

 FY15 Dec
Year to

Date

Expenditures

Salaries & Wages Benefits
County Overhead Misc. Services & Supplies
Professional Services Chemical Supplies
Biologicals Capital



Date: DBOH meeting January 22, 2015 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2015, December Financial Review 
Page 3 of 4 

Review of Revenue and Expenditures by Division 

AQM division revenue has a 6.2% decline, $85,877, over FY14.  EHS is up 29.6%, $200,045, over 
FY14 with the majority of that increase due to the tire fee revenue; excluding the tire fee revenue the 
increase over FY14 is 8.5%, $51,225.  EPHP is down from FY14 by 2.5%, $16,357, mainly due to a 
decline in grant funding.  County General Fund transferred $4,271,747 of the budgeted transfer, $1.4 
million more than the same time last fiscal year.     

With 50.0% of the fiscal year completed the total expenditures of $9.6 million were slightly less at 
46.3% of total budget. ODHO, CCHS, EHS were running at a level spending pattern for the year.  AHS 
continues to be high due to the unbudgeted retirement payouts and AQM was low due to unspent capital 
funding.  The EPHP is down from what would be a level spending pattern due to the recruitment time 
that was required for new staff in the Vital Statistics and Emergency Medical Services program.  The 
County General Fund overhead charges for the six months totaled $1.4 million, 50.0% of budget, but 
down 5.4% from FY14 due to the overall decline in the overhead charge. 

2011/2012 2012/2013
Actual          

Year End
 December               

Year to Date 
 Adjusted 

Budget 
 December               

Year to Date 
 Percent of 

Budget 

 FY15 
Increase 

over FY14 
Revenues (all sources of funds)

ODHO -              -              -              -              -              -               - -
AHS 8 33,453         87,930         32,903         61,113         41 0.1% -99.9%
AQM 1,966,492     2,068,697     2,491,036     1,374,378    2,116,070     1,288,500     60.9% -6.2%
CCHS 3,706,478     3,322,667     3,388,099     1,183,125    3,528,098     1,272,156     36.1% 7.5%
EHS 1,755,042     1,828,482     1,890,192     676,572       1,862,623     876,617       47.1% 29.6%
EPHP 1,670,338     1,833,643     1,805,986     661,742       1,630,280     645,385       39.6% -2.5%
GF Operating 7,250,850     6,623,891     6,853,891     2,284,630    7,666,420     3,274,838     42.7% 43.3%
GF Overhead Subsidy -              2,000,000     1,750,000     583,333       2,333,772     996,909       42.7% 70.9%
Total Revenues 16,349,208$ 17,710,834$ 18,267,134$ 6,796,683$  19,198,375$ 8,354,446$   43.5% 22.9%

Expenditures
ODHO -              -              -              -              437,477       218,598       50.0% -
AHS 1,202,330     1,305,407     1,247,924     592,258       1,004,343     552,026       55.0% -6.8%
AQM 1,955,798     2,297,077     2,170,911     1,011,131    2,752,520     1,068,654     38.8% 5.7%
CCHS 6,086,866     5,757,304     5,779,003     2,777,429    5,987,646     2,894,948     48.3% 4.2%
EHS 4,848,375     4,772,942     4,804,597     2,487,480    5,533,991     2,593,228     46.9% 4.3%
EPHP 2,084,830     2,129,310     2,022,331     956,523       2,350,969     940,350       40.0% -1.7%
GF Overhead Charge -              2,553,372     2,898,034     1,449,017    2,741,061     1,370,531     50.0% -5.4%
Total Expenditures 16,178,200$ 18,815,411$ 18,922,800$ 9,273,838$  20,808,007$ 9,638,335$   46.3% 3.9%

Revenues (sources of funds) less Expenditures:
ODHO -              -              -              -              (437,477)      (218,598)      
AHS (1,202,322)   (1,271,953)   (1,159,994)   (559,355)      (943,230)      (551,985)      
AQM 10,694         (228,380)      320,125       363,246       (636,450)      219,846       
CCHS (2,380,389)   (2,434,637)   (2,390,904)   (1,594,305)   (2,459,548)   (1,622,792)   
EHS (3,093,333)   (2,944,460)   (2,914,405)   (1,810,907)   (3,671,368)   (1,716,610)   
EPHP (414,492)      (295,666)      (216,345)      (294,781)      (720,689)      (294,966)      
GF Operating 7,250,850     6,623,891     6,853,891     2,284,630    7,666,420     3,274,838     
GF Overhead Subsidy -              (553,372)      (1,148,034)   (865,684)      (407,289)      (373,621)      
Surplus (deficit) 171,008$     (1,104,577)$  (655,666)$    (2,477,155)$ (1,609,632)$  (1,283,890)$  

Fund Balance (FB) 3,916,042$   2,811,465$   2,155,799$   546,168$     
FB as a % of Expenditures 24.2% 14.9% 11.4% 2.6%
Note: ODHO=Office of the District Health Officer, AHS=Administrative Health Services, AQM=Air Quality Management,  CCHS=Community and Clinical Health 
Services, EHS=Environmental Health Services, EPHP=Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness, GF=County General Fund

Fiscal Year 2014/2015

Washoe County Health District
Summary of Revenues (including County General Fund transfers) and Expenditures

Fiscal Year 2011/2012 through December Year to Date Fiscal Year 2014/2015 (FY15)
Fiscal Year 2013/2014Actual Fiscal Year



Date: DBOH meeting January 22, 2015 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2015, December Financial Review 
Page 4 of 4 

FISCAL IMPACT 

No fiscal impact associated with the acknowledgement of this staff report. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the District Board of Health acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund 
Financial Review for Fiscal Year 2015 year to date December 31, 2014. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 

Move to acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund Financial Review for Fiscal Year 2015 year to 
date December 31, 2014. 

Attachment: 
Health District Fund summary report with line item detail 











STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: January 22, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 
FROM: Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer 
SUBJECT:  Presentation and discussion of follow-up report regarding direction provided at the 

December 18, 2014 meeting with respect to benchmarking statistics and request for 
Board to direct staff to continue with or make adjustments to uniform methodology 
approved June 26, 2014.  

SUMMARY 

Follow-up from December 18, 2014 District Board of Health meeting regarding the direction to staff 
on Fundamental Review and the Cost Analysis in relation to the use of benchmarking statistics. 

District Health Strategic Objective supported:  Secure and deploy resources for sustainable impact. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 

December 18, 2014 District Board of Health requested that the minutes for the meeting regarding the 
Fundamental Review presentation and the direction for the cost analysis be brought back to the board. 

June 26, 2014 the District Board of Health approved the uniform cost methodology and schedule to 
review the 22 Health District Programs; and directed staff to initiate the cost analyses. 

February 27, 2014 the District Board of Health accepted the Fundamental Review report. 

BACKGROUND 

At the December 18, 2014 board meeting, discussions took place regarding the benchmarks and best 
practices to use for comparisons on the cost analysis.  Direction was given to staff to bring back to the 
board the minutes from the Fundamental Review presentation and the cost analysis direction. 

The minutes from the meeting on the Fundamental Review and the Cost Analysis Methodology are 
attached.  No staff report was attached to the Fundamental Review report but the page from the report 
that recommended using the Public Health Uniform National Data System, PHUND$, is attached.  
Included in the Fundamental Review are several comparisons to the 2013 NACCHO (National Association
of County & City Health Officials) Profile of Local Health Departments for total fund revenues per capita; total 
fund expenditures per capita; clinical services revenue per capita; local revenue per capita; and, 
workforce to population ratios.   

The staff report for the approval on the methodology for the cost analysis is also attached, no specific 
direction was given regarding benchmarks and best practices; however, it was identified in the 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 18



Subject: Direction for methodology on Cost Analysis 
Date:  January 22, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

background of the cost analysis methodology that “the PHUND$ tool will be adapted to analyze the 
data”.   

The Public Health Uniform National Data System, PHUND$, is a web-based public health financial 
data collection and analysis portal.  PHUND$ was created to: provide public health agencies with the 
ability to proactively assess their financial and operational performance; aid NACCHO in describing 
and monitoring the financial health and sustainability of the public health system; promote uniform 
public health financial management practices; advance practices that promote quality in public health; 
and, increase public health agency transparency.   

Within PHUND$, Washoe County Health District is part of Region 9 and is compared to other 
agencies with similar population, revenues, jurisdiction type (i.e. County vs. City), level of governance 
(i.e. State vs Local), scope of agency services (i.e. Comprehensive Primary Care vs No 
Comprehensive Primary Care)  in the following locations: Arizona, California, Hawaii, Nevada, 
American Samoa, Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, Federated State of Micronesia, 
Guam, Marshall Islands, and Republic of Palau. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

No fiscal impact. 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board either continue with the direction given on June 26, 2014 for the 
uniform methodology or provide direction to staff regarding changes to the uniform methodology 
used for the Cost Analysis.  

POSSIBLE MOTION 

Move to direct staff to: 

Continue with the uniform methodology approved June 26, 2014 for phases one through three on the 
cost analysis project. 

or 

Make the following adjustments to the methodology established June 26, 2014. 

Attachments: 
Minutes from the February 27, 2014 DBOH meeting on the Fundamental Review and page 16 of the report that has the recommendation 
to use the NACCHO’s Public Health Uniform Data System (PHUND$) 
Minutes and staff report from the June 26, 2014 DBOH meeting regarding the Cost Analyses of programs 



























 
STAFF REPORT 

BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2015 
 
 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
775.328.2416, kdick@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Acceptance of the January 2015 Nevada legislative session report and providing 
input and/or direction as DBOH may feel is appropriate.  

 

SUMMARY 
This is a monthly update regarding bill draft requests (BDRs) or bill drafts which may be of interest to 
the District Board of Health and the Health District.  

District Health Strategic Objective supported by this item:  Demonstrate the value and 
contribution of public health, secure and deploy resources for sustainable impact, strengthen WCHD 
as an innovative, high- performing organization and achieve targeted improvements in health 
outcomes and health equity. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
Each biennium, WCHD has monitored Legislative activities and acted on them as directed by the 
District Board of Health.  The initial staff report for the 2015 legislative session was provided during 
the December 18, 2014 meeting.   

BACKGROUND 
At the December 18, 2014 meeting, the Board moved to direct staff to monitor and act upon 2015 
Legislative Session identified topics of interest and Bill Draft Requests affecting the Health District, 
and submit a monthly staff legislative status report providing an update on legislative actions and 
Health District positions during the legislative session.  

.  These monthly briefings can be used for discussion and for any specific direction the DBOH would 
like to provide for the Health District’s legislative activities.  

A number of BDRs have been introduced since the 2015 legislative session staff report provided at the 
December 2014 DBOH meeting.  The list of newly introduced BDRs is included as an attachment.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Should the Board approve staff’s recommendation, there will be no fiscal impact to the adopted FY15 
budget  

RECOMMENDATION 

 
OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
ODHO Phone: 775-328-2416   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 



Subject: January 2015 Legislative Report 
Date: January 22, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 
 
Staff recommends the Board accept the January 2015 Nevada legislative session report and provide 
input and/or direction as DBOH may feel is appropriate 

POSSIBLE MOTION 
A possible motion would be: Accept the January 2015 Nevada legislative session report and provide 
input and/or direction as DBOH may feel is appropriate. 

 

 

 

 



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report, January 22, 2015 
Includes BDRs introduced since December 18, 2014 report

 and Bills being actively tracked by WCHD

Page 1 of 7

BDR Bill Description Sponsors Status

656 Authorizes industrial hemp farming in Nevada and 
makes various other changes relating to hemp. Senator Segerblom Released

657 Makes various changes relating to medical 
marijuana. Senator Segerblom Released

54-663 Revises provisions relating to professions. Senator Spearman Released

666 Revises provisions governing school safety. Assemblywoman Benitez-
Thompson Released

667 Revises provisions governing fuel taxes. Assemblyman Paul Anderson Released

43-669
Provides for a program of matching grants to local 
governments for the maintenance and repair of 
public works.

Senator Atkinson Released

670 Revises provisions relating to health insurance 
covering prescription drugs. Senator Atkinson Released

671 Revises provisions relating to apprentices. Senator Atkinson Released
672 Revises provisions relating to energy. Senator Atkinson Released

673 Revises provisions relating to occupational 
licensing. Senator Atkinson Released

43-674 Revises provisions relating to vehicle collisions. Senator Manendo Released

40-675 Revises provisions relating to motor vehicles. Senator Manendo Released

676 Revises provisions relating to programs of 
instruction in sex education. Senator Hammond Released

34-678 Revises provisions relating to education. Senator Hammond Released

681 Revises provisions relating to wild horses and 
burros. Senator Manendo Released

683 Revises provisions governing transportation 
technology. Senator Manendo Released

684 Revises provisions relating to motor vehicles. Senator Woodhouse Released

685 Revises provisions governing use of child restraint 
systems in motor vehicles. Senator Woodhouse Released

686 Revises provisions relating to safe transportation of 
children. Senator Woodhouse Released

687 Revises provisions relating to health care. Senator Hardy Released

688 Makes various changes relating to controlled 
substances. Senator Hardy Released

689 Makes various changes relating to insurance. Senator Hardy Released

690 Revises provisions relating to medical care. Senate Committee on Health and 
Human Services Released

34-691 Revises provisions relating to immunizations. Senate Committee on Health and 
Human Services Released

693 Provides for centralized regional mental health 
services and information. Assemblyman Araujo Released

40-694 Revises provisions governing health districts. Assemblyman Thompson Released

695 Enacts provisions to address transitioning youth to 
adulthood. Assemblyman Thompson Released

696 Revises provisions governing business licensing. Assemblyman Thompson Released

54-698 Makes various changes governing the provision of 
certain health care services. Assemblyman Kirner Requested

700 Revises provisions to provide for the development 
and growth of small businesses.

Assemblywoman Bustamante 
Adams Released



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report, January 22, 2015 
Includes BDRs introduced since December 18, 2014 report

 and Bills being actively tracked by WCHD

Page 2 of 7

40-702 Revises provisions governing emergency medical 
services.

Assembly Committee on Health 
and Human Services Released

703 Revises provisions relating to the use of safety belts 
in taxicabs.

Assembly Committee on 
Transportation Released

43-705 Revises provisions relating to school buses. Senator Goicoechea Released

706 Requires coordination between state and local 
government agencies.

Senate Committee on Government 
Affairs Released

707 Makes various changes relating to farm vehicles 
and equipment. Senator Goicoechea Released

708 Revises provisions relating to water. Senate Committee on Government 
Affairs Released

709 Revises provisions relating to cities. Senate Committee on Government 
Affairs Released

710
Makes various changes relating to the relocation of 
certain facilities that provide telecommunication 
services.

Senate Committee on Government 
Affairs Released

715 Makes various changes relating to certain 
businesses. Senator Gustavson Released

716 Revises provisions concerning the Nevada 
Transportation Authority. Senator Gustavson Released

717 Makes various changes relating to the Nevada 
Transportation Authority. Senator Gustavson Released

718 Revises provisions governing the equipment and 
training required to operate a motorcycle. Senator Gustavson Released

721 Revises provisions related to insurance. Senator Lipparelli Released
723 Revises provisions related to motor vehicles. Senator Lipparelli Released
724 Revises provisions related to education. Senator Lipparelli Released
725 Revises provisions relating to real property. Senator Harris Released

726 Makes various changes relating to real property. Senator Harris Released

728 Revises provisions concerning real property. Senator Harris Released
34-729 Revises provisions concerning education. Senator Harris Released

730 Revises provisions relating to local governmental 
entities. Senator Hardy Released

732 Makes various changes relating to education. Senator Harris Released

3-735 Enacts the Nevada Freedom of Conscience 
Protection Act. Senator Hardy Released

34-740 Makes various changes to provide access to 
community resources for children in public schools. Assemblywoman Spiegel Released

741 Revises provisions governing certain boards and 
commissions. Assemblywoman Swank Released

743 Revises provisions relating to motor vehicles. Assemblywoman Kirkpatrick Released
745 Revises provisions governing foster care. Assemblywoman Swank Released

749 Revises provisions governing class size reduction. Assemblyman Elliot Anderson Released

752 Revises provisions governing predation 
management.

Assembly Committee on Natural 
Resources, Agriculture, and 
Mining

Released

753 Revises provisions governing liquor. Assemblyman Oscarson Released

755 Enacts provisions for the protection of women. Assemblyman Hambrick Requested



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report, January 22, 2015 
Includes BDRs introduced since December 18, 2014 report

 and Bills being actively tracked by WCHD

Page 3 of 7

756 Revises provisions governing personal information. Assemblyman Flores Released

757 Revises provisions governing adoption. Assemblyman Araujo Released
763 Revises provisions relating to education. Senator Roberson Released

769 Provides for flexibility and efficiency in Nevada's 
Medicaid program. Assemblyman Paul Anderson Released

38-773 Revises provisions governing children in foster 
care. Assemblyman Sprinkle Released

775 Revises provisions governing prescription 
medication. Assemblyman Sprinkle Released

776 Enacts provisions relating to captive wild animals. Assemblywoman Swank Released

780 Revises provisions related to certain businesses. Senator Lipparelli Released

782 Revises provisions related to commercial 
development. Senator Lipparelli Released

784 Revises provisions related to certain businesses. Senator Lipparelli Released

788 Revises provisions relating to transportation. Senate Committee on 
Transportation Released

789 Revises provisions relating to STEM education in 
Nevada's schools. Senator Woodhouse Released

790 Revises provisions relating to education. Senator Farley Released
792 Revises provisions relating to construction. Senator Farley Released

794 Revises provisions relating to prescription drugs. Senator Farley Released

795 Revises provisions relating to insurance. Senator Farley Released

796 Revises provisions relating to the regulation of 
certain products. Senator Farley Released

797 Revises provisions relating to medical students. Senator Farley Released

798 Revises provisions relating to emergency medical 
services. Assemblywoman Woodbury Released

802 Revises provisions governing the sale or transfer of 
certain personal information. Assemblyman Carrillo Released

803 Makes various changes to the provision of care for 
children with special needs. Assemblywoman Spiegel Released

804 Provides for the collection and application of 
graywater for a single-family residence.

Assembly Committee on Health 
and Human Services Released

805

Requires the Legislative Committee on Public 
Lands to conduct a study concerning water 
conservation and alternative sources of water for 
Nevada communities.

Assemblyman Oscarson Released

806 Revises provisions governing certain courses of 
study in public schools. Assemblywoman Dooling Released

810 Makes various changes relating to local 
governments. Assemblywoman Woodbury Released

811 Makes various changes relating to children with 
disabilities. Assemblywoman Woodbury Released

812 Revises provisions governing pupils. Assemblywoman Woodbury Released
818 Revises provisions relating to family law. Assemblyman Ohrenschall Released
819 Revises provisions governing athletics. Assemblyman Munford Released
820 Revises provisions governing health care. Assemblyman Moore Released



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report, January 22, 2015 
Includes BDRs introduced since December 18, 2014 report

 and Bills being actively tracked by WCHD

Page 4 of 7

822 Revises provisions governing business entities. Assemblyman Moore Released

823 Revises provisions governing local financial 
administration. Assemblyman Moore Released

824 Revises provisions governing persons with autism. Assemblyman Armstrong Released

22-827 Revises provisions relating to local government 
financing. Senator Kieckhefer Released

829 Revises provisions relating to insurance. Senator Kieckhefer Released
830 Revises provisions relating to Medicaid. Senator Kieckhefer Released

832 Mandates enhanced screening and intervention for 
children with dyslexia. Assemblyman Ohrenschall Released

833 Revises provisions relating to fire districts. Senator Kieckhefer Released
836 Revises provisions relating to health care. Senator Kieckhefer Released

837 Provides for a statewide strategy regarding receipt 
of federal funds. Senate Committee on Finance Released

838 Revises requirements regarding records of federal 
funding. Senate Committee on Finance Released

839 Revises provisions concerning surplus federal 
funds. Senate Committee on Finance Released

840 Revises provisions governing public safety. Assemblywoman Fiore Released

843 Makes various changes to administrative 
regulations. Assemblywoman Fiore Released

845 Revises provisions governing health care. Assemblywoman Fiore Released
848 Revises provisions governing education. Senator Gustavson Released
849 Makes certain changes relating to education. Senator Gustavson Released
854 Makes various changes to liquor. Assemblywoman Seaman Released
855 Revises provisions governing real property. Assemblywoman Seaman Released

857 Makes various changes relating to financial 
governmental administration. Assemblywoman Seaman Released

858 Revises provisions governing local government 
employee relations. Assemblyman Nelson Released

869 Revises provisions relating to pharmacy. Senator Smith Released
870 Revises provisions relating to school safety. Senator Smith Released

871 Revises provisions relating to domestic violence. Senator Smith Released

872 Revises provisions relating to the state legislative 
process. Senator Smith Released

873 Revises provisions governing prohibitions on 
smoking tobacco in certain locations. Senator Smith Released

874 Revises provisions relating to the collection of 
certain fees for local governments. Senator Smith Released

877 Revises provisions relating to education. Senator Kihuen Released

880 Makes various changes relating to childhood 
obesity and nutrition. Senator Kihuen Released

884 Revises provisions governing controlled 
substances. Senator Kihuen Released

886 Revises provisions governing education. Assemblyman Jones Released
887 Revises provisions relating to Zoom schools. Senator Denis Released

889 Revises provisions relating to controlled 
substances. Senator Denis Released



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report, January 22, 2015 
Includes BDRs introduced since December 18, 2014 report

 and Bills being actively tracked by WCHD

Page 5 of 7

891 Makes various changes concerning prevention and 
treatment of obesity. Senator Denis Released

54-893 Revises provisions relating to recycling. Senator Denis Released

894 Authorizes the use of motorized wheelchairs in bike 
lanes. Senator Denis Released

896 Revises provisions governing real property. Assemblyman Jones Released
897 Revises provisions governing health care. Assemblyman Jones Released

898 Revises provisions governing selection of providers 
of health care. Assemblyman Jones Released

899 Revises provisions governing professional 
licensing. Assemblyman Jones Released

34-901 Makes various changes to education. Assemblyman Gardner Released
902 Enacts provisions relating to education. Assemblyman Gardner Released
906 Makes various changes to businesses. Assemblyman Gardner Released
909 Makes various changes relating to education. Assemblywoman Diaz Released

30-917 Revises provisions governing public financial 
administration. Assemblywoman Dickman Released

918 Revises provisions governing firearms. Assemblywoman Dickman Released

920 Revises provisions governing public purchasing 
and contracting. Assemblywoman Dickman Released

3-921 Makes various changes relating to real property. Assemblyman Flores Released

925 Revises provisions governing charter schools. Assemblyman Silberkraus Released

928 Revises provisions governing the definition of 
"farm" for purposes of availability of water.

Assembly Committee on Natural 
Resources, Agriculture, and 
Mining

Released

930 Revises provisions relating to persons who are 
diagnosed with epilepsy. Assemblywoman Titus Released

931 Makes various changes relating to the Open 
Meeting Law. Assemblywoman Titus Released

3-938 Revises provisions relating to comparative 
negligence. Senate Majority Leader Released

3-940 Revises provisions relating to punitive damages 
awarded in certain civil actions. Senate Majority Leader Released

941 ACR: Provides for the adoption of the Joint 
Standing Rules for the 78th Session

Secretary of the Senate & Chief 
Clerk of the Assembly Released

942 SR: Provides for the adoption of the Standing 
Rules of the Senate for the 78th Session Secretary of the Senate. Released

943 AR: Provides for the adoption of the Standing 
Rules of the Assembly for the 78th Session Chief Clerk of the Assembly Released

AB19
Revises provisions governing the timing of the 
adoption of tentative budgets by certain local 
governments. (BDR 31-456)

Committee on Government Affairs First Reading

AB25 Revises provisions governing the residential 
construction tax. (BDR 22-454) Committee on Government Affairs First Reading

AB36
Revises provisions governing emergency services 
and care provided by hospitals in certain larger 
counties. (BDR 40-474)

Committee on Health and Human 
Services First Reading

AB48
Makes various changes relating to fraudulent acts 
committed against the State or a political 
subdivision. (BDR 14-154)

Committee on Judiciary First Reading



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report, January 22, 2015 
Includes BDRs introduced since December 18, 2014 report

 and Bills being actively tracked by WCHD

Page 6 of 7

AB52 Revises provisions governing the persons 
responsible for a child's welfare. (BDR 38-192)

Committee on Health and Human 
Services First Reading

AB54
Revises provisions relating to local governments 
existing in a severe financial emergency. (BDR 31-
308)

Committee on Government Affairs First Reading

AB60 Revises provisions relating to ethics in government. 
(BDR 23-309)

Committee on Legislative 
Operations and Elections First Reading

AB72 Revises provisions governing state professional 
licensing boards. (BDR 54-161)

Committee on Commerce and 
Labor First Reading

AB77 Makes various changes relating to the regulation of 
agriculture. (BDR 49-346)

Committee on Natural Resources, 
Agriculture, and Mining First Reading

AB79 Revises provisions relating to agriculture. (BDR 50-
345)

Committee on Natural Resources, 
Agriculture, and Mining First Reading

AB87 Revises certain provisions governing the duties of 
insurers with regard to Medicaid. (BDR 57-326)

Committee on Commerce and 
Labor First Reading

AB90 Establishes the Nevada Intrastate Mutual Aid 
System. (BDR 36-391) Committee on Government Affairs First Reading

AB92 Makes various changes relating to parentage. 
(BDR 11-301) Benitez-Thompson First Reading

AB93
Revises provisions relating to the continuing 
education required to renew certain licenses. 
(BDR 54-27)

Benitez-Thompson First Reading

SB2 Increases the maximum speed at which a person 
may drive or operate a vehicle. (BDR 43-13) Gustavson First Reading

SB11
Grants power to local governments to perform 
certain acts or duties which are not prohibited or 
limited by statute. (BDR 20-284)

Goicoechea First Reading

SB15
Requires a mental health professional to notify 
certain persons of explicit threats communicated by 
a patient in certain circumstances. (BDR 54-3)

Committee on Health and Human 
Services First Reading

SB28
Clarifies provisions governing the fees that may be 
charged for providing copies of certain public 
records. (BDR 19-464)

Committee on Government Affairs First Reading

SB29
Grants power to a board of county commissioners 
to perform certain acts which are not prohibited or 
limited by statute. (BDR 20-465)

Committee on Government Affairs First Reading

SB33 Makes various changes relating to county hospitals. 
(BDR 40-475)

Committee on Health and Human 
Services First Reading

SB43
Revises provisions governing certain safety 
requirements for driving across railroad tracks. 
(BDR 43-378)

Committee on Transportation First Reading

SB48 Revises provisions relating to health information 
exchanges. (BDR 40-323)

Committee on Health and Human 
Services First Reading

SB49 Revises provisions relating to emergency shelters 
for children. (BDR 38-498)

Committee on Health and Human 
Services First Reading

SB59 Revises provisions relating to the state business 
portal. (BDR 7-448) Committee on Judiciary Printer



 2015 Legislative Session Tracking Report, January 22, 2015 
Includes BDRs introduced since December 18, 2014 report

 and Bills being actively tracked by WCHD

Page 7 of 7

SB65 Revises provisions relating to the use of water. 
(BDR 48-366) Committee on Government Affairs Printer

SB66
Revises provisions governing local governmental 
agreements for the development of land. (BDR 22-
422)

Committee on Government Affairs First Reading

SB67 Revises provisions governing the regulation of 
insurance. (BDR 57-371)

Committee on Commerce, Labor, 
and Energy First Reading

SB70 Revises provisions governing meetings of public 
bodies. (BDR 19-155) Committee on Government Affairs First Reading

SB79 Provides for the regulation and taxation of liquid 
nicotine. (BDR 32-307)

Committee on Revenue and 
Economic Development First Reading

SB85 Revises certain provisions of the Nevada Insurance 
Code. (BDR 57-153)

Committee on Commerce, Labor, 
and Energy First Reading

SB86 Revises provisions governing pipeline and 
subsurface safety. (BDR 58-347)

Committee on Commerce, Labor, 
and Energy First Reading

SB88

Revises provisions governing the Statewide Central 
Registry for the Collection of Information 
Concerning the Abuse or Neglect of a Child. 
(BDR 38-337)

Committee on Health and Human 
Services First Reading

SB89
Revises provisions regarding expenditures from the 
Fund for Cleaning Up Discharges of Petroleum. 
(BDR 51-370)

Committee on Natural Resources First Reading



DIVISION DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2015 

DATE: January 9, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Charlene Albee, Director 
775-784-7211, calbee@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Program Update –2014 Year in Review; Divisional Update – Monthly Air Quality 
Index; Program Reports -- Monitoring & Planning and Permitting 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Program Update

a. 2014 Year in Review

In 2014, the Air Quality Management Division emerged, following a period of transition
in 2013, as a dedicated team with ambitious goals focused on achieving advancements in
the management of air quality in Washoe County.  Here are the top stories for 2014:

• The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency awarded AQM with a Clean
Air Excellence Award, specifically the Gregg Cooke Visionary Award, for
the Keep it Clean program.  EPA presented this award for outstanding,
innovative efforts in improving air quality.  EPA identified the Keep it
Clean program as a demonstration of true commitment to obtaining
cleaner air and protecting the environment.

• AQM announced the delivery of daily air quality information through
EnviroFlash, a service provided through a partnership with EPA.  The
annual EnviroFlash challenge was conducted among air quality agencies
across the country to increase subscribers.  AQM won first place in total
percentage increase and took third place in the total subscriber increase.
This proved to be a very useful tool in September during the King Fire
since AQM had encouraged stakeholders across the area to subscribe to
EnviroFlash.

• AQM in partnership with the University of Nevada, Reno Business
Environmental Program, established a Woodstove Exchange Program for
Southern Washoe County.  The program provides financial incentives up
to $1,000 for the removal of old, dirty burning woodstoves with new,

AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
AQM Office: 775-784-7200   I   Fax: 775-784-7225   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 19.A



AQM Division Director Report 
January 9, 2015 
Page 2 of 6 

efficient, cleaner burning devices.  The goal of the program is to replace 
up to 197 woodstoves within the areas affected by the Keep it Clean – 
Know the Code winter burning regulations.  With financial support from 
the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency, the program was extended to 
include Incline Village. 

• In November, AQM submitted a redesignation request to EPA
demonstrating the Truckee Meadows Basin has achieved compliance with
the PM10 National Ambient Air Quality Standard.  The PM10 standard
was established in 1987 and this marks the first time the area has been able
to demonstrate compliance.

With the significant achievements recognized in 2014, the upcoming year poses equally 
significant challenges.  EPA has proposed a new ozone standard which will dictate the 
future direction of our control strategies.  AQM is actively participating in the Accela 
Regional Licensing & Permitting Software Project at the same time the area is 
experiencing economic recovery and the resulting increase in businesses requiring 
permits.  I have full confidence in the ability of the AQM staff to meet these challenges 
and continue the commitment to our mission to Keep it Clean.  

Charlene Albee, REM 
Director, Air Quality Management Division 



AQM Division Director Report 
January 9, 2015 
Page 3 of 6 

2. Divisional Update

a. Below are two charts detailing the latest air quality information for the month of
December.  The top chart indicates the highest AQI by pollutant and includes the
highest AQI from the previous three years in the data table for comparison.  The
bottom chart indicates the number of days by AQI category and includes the previous
year to date for comparison.

Please note AQI data are not fully verified and validated and should be considered 
preliminary.  As such, they should not be used to formulate or support regulation, 
guidance, or any other governmental or public decision.  For a daily depiction of the AQI 
data, please visit www.OurCleanAir.com for the most recent AQI Summary. 

http://www.ourcleanair.com/


AQM Division Director Report 
January 9, 2015 
Page 4 of 6 

3. Program Reports

a. Monitoring & Planning

There were no exceedances of any National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS)
during the month of December.

The first Red Burn Code of the season was issued on December 9.  Reduced woodburning
and improved weather conditions led to the Red burn code being rescinded on December
10. The first Red Burn Code of the 2013-14 season was also issued on December 9, but
that episode continued for nine days.  Red Burn Codes are issued to prevent PM2.5 levels
from reaching, or reducing the severity of exceeding, the health based NAAQS.

The proposed ozone NAAQS was published in the Federal Register on December 17,
2014.  The public comment period ends March 17, 2015 and the final rule is expected to
be published in October 2015.  Based on current ambient air monitoring data, Washoe
County may violate the standard if the level is strengthened to the middle of the proposed
65-70 ppb range.

On December 8, 2014, the Reno and Sparks City Councils and Washoe County
Commissioners held a concurrent meeting to discuss the regional impacts of accelerated
economic development, specifically with respect to the upcoming Tesla project.
Transportation impacts were not directly addressed but were identified to be included in
future meetings.  RTC will provide a presentation at the next meeting.  AQMD and RTC
will evaluate the transportation-related accelerated economic impacts (i.e., vehicle miles
traveled and motor vehicle emissions).  The additional impacts must conform to the 2035
Regional Transportation Plan and AQMD’s State Implementation Plans.

Daniel K. Inouye 
Chief, Monitoring and Planning 



AQM Division Director Report 
January 9, 2015 
Page 5 of 6 

b. Permitting & Enforcement

Type of Permit 
2014 2013 

December YTD December 
Annual 
Total 

Renewal of Existing Air 
Permits 

94 1328 96 1356 

New Authorities to Construct 14 133 3 71 

Dust Control Permits 14 
(112 acres) 

114 
(1172 acres) 

3 
 (63 acres) 

119 
(1150 acres) 

Wood Stove Certificates 25 322 27 364 

WS Dealers Affidavit of Sale 17 
(13 replacements) 

105 
(80 replacements) 

13 
(7 replacements) 

99 
(61 replacements) 

WS Notice of Exemptions 
809 

(1 stoves 
removed) 

7143 
(63 stoves 
removed) 

570 
(8 stoves 
removed) 

8356 
(88 stoves 
removed) 

Asbestos Assessments 75 862 53 828 

Asbestos Demo and Removal 
(NESHAP) 

24 199 8 199 

Staff reviewed fifteen (15) sets of plans submitted to the Reno, Sparks or Washoe County 
Building Departments to assure the activities complied with Air Quality requirements. 

• The TMWRF H2S scrubbing system is installed and operating.  The system is
now controlling sulfur emissions from their gas stream.  TMWRF staff has
completed training on the new scrubber system.

• The first Authorities to Construct for medical marijuana facilities have been
issued, including two (2) cultivation and one (1) processing facility.

• Inspection staff is working with RTC, Aspen Development and various asbestos
abatement contractors to monitor and ensure continued compliance for the



AQM Division Director Report 
January 9, 2015 
Page 6 of 6 

Pyramid Highway expansion project.  The project will involve asbestos abatement 
in 63 homes currently owned by RTC. 

Staff conducted fifty four (54) stationary source and fifty one (51) gas station inspections in 
December 2014.  Staff also conducted inspections on asbestos removal and construction/dust 
projects.   

COMPLAINTS 
2014* 2013 

December YTD December Annual 
Total 

Asbestos 5 27 1 18 

Burning 4 9 0 8 

Construction Dust 4 53 2 0 

Dust Control Permit 0 20 0 7 

General Dust 2 52 2 46 

Diesel Idling 0 3 0 8 

Odor 1 16 2 16 

Spray Painting 2 8 0 5 

Permit to Operate 2 31 2 55 

Woodstove 2 12 1 16 

TOTAL 22 231 8 209 

NOV’s December YTD December Annual 
Total 

Warnings 5 41 5 46 
Citations 0 11 4 40 
TOTAL 5 52 9 86 

*Discrepancies in totals between monthly reports can occur due to data entry delays.



DIVISIONAL STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: January 22, 2015 

DATE: January 9, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Steve Kutz, RN, MPH 
775-328-6159; skutz@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Program Update – Divisional Update, Program Reports 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Divisional Update
a. Netsmart – Work continues to test and implement the Family Planning and STD Field

Questions Insight modules. Planning is underway to provide clinic clients with electronic
access to appointments and their healthcare records, with a demonstration of the Netsmart
product, myHealthPointe, to be held soon.

b. Affordable Care Act (ACA) – I have been working with HealthInsight (a healthcare
quality improvement organization) on opportunities to secure Electronic Health Record
(EHR) financial incentives for serving Medicaid clients once certain benchmarks are met.

c. Data/Metrics –

558 167 185 356 
18 

1284 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

IZ TB STD FP MCAH Total

Number of Visits by Program 
December 2013 and December 2014 

December 2013 December 2014

COMMUNITY AND CLINICAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
CCHS Phone: 775-328-2441   I   Fax: 775-328-3750   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO.19.B



Subject: CCHS Report for January 2015 
Date: January 22, 2015 
Page 2 of 4 

*It takes a full month after the last day of the reporting month for final caseload counts as WIC clinics operate to the end of
the month and participants have 30 days after that to purchase their WIC foods. 

Changes in data can be attributed to a number of factors – fluctuations in community demand, changes in staffing and 
changes in scope of work/grant deliverables, all which may affect the availability of services. 

2. Program Reports – Outcomes and Activities
a. Sexual Health – Staff provided STD and HIV testing at a popular nightclub (Tronix) on

December 26th, 2014.  Tronix draws the Men that have Sex with Men (MSM) population.
Staff worked with the Northern Nevada Outreach Team (NNOT) to plan an event that
would target the Hispanic MSM population.  Thirteen (13) people were tested.

All Sexual Health Staff are working to increase the use of rapid HIV testing in 
accordance with grant goals. Advantages to using this technology include immediate 
results of HIV status to those who test, allowing for prompt linkage to care if found to be 
HIV positive. 

b. Immunizations – Six School Located Vaccination Clinics (SLVCs) were held in
December, in partnership with Immunize Nevada, at Anderson, Cold Springs, Jerry
Whitehead, Glenn Duncan and Grace Warner Elementary schools.  A total of 662
vaccinations were given to 521 children and 29 adults including 160 Tdap and 502 flu
vaccinations. During the Fall 2014 SLVC project a total of 20 clinics were held,
providing vaccinations to 1,997 children and 222 adults.  A total of 558 Tdap and 2,077
flu vaccinations were given.  Additionally, four Community Clinics were held in
partnership with Immunize Nevada, providing vaccinations to 121 adults and 131
children.  A total of 4 Tdap, 2 pneumococcal and 252 flu vaccinations were provided.

450 337 407 1,195 

2,946 

5335 

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

Number of WIC Participants Served 
November 2014* 



Subject: CCHS Report for January 2015 
Date: January 22, 2015 
Page 3 of 4 

Staff also held three Indigent Immunization Clinics, providing 128 flu, 33 pneumococcal 
and 52 Tdap vaccinations to a total of 131 adults and 2 children. 

During the fourth quarter of 2014, the Immunization Program also partnered with 
Catholic Charities of Northern Nevada Kids to Seniors Program for 27 outreach clinics 
and provided 986 doses of vaccine to 257 children and 290 adults.  

c. Tuberculosis Prevention and Control Program – Staff hosted the TB Cohort Review
on December 16, 2014.  Washoe County staff as well as representatives from Carson City
and the rural areas presented TB cases from 2013. The presentation was well received
and provided an educational opportunity to learn the complexities of TB care.

d. Family Planning/Teen Health Mall – Staff met for eight hours this month to begin
orienting to and planning the implementation for the transition to the Family Planning
Module in Insight. The team plans to implement by April 1, 2015.

e. Chronic Disease Prevention Program (CDPP) – “Breastfeeding Welcomed Here”
resolutions were obtained from the District Board of Health and the Washoe County
Commissioners in December 2014.

The Chronic Disease Coalition had their fourth quarterly meeting of the year with a 
presentation on Washoe County Youth BMI and a brief strategic planning discussion. 

Staff attended a presentation on the new Nevada Tobacco Quitline service.  The new 
quitline provider has been operating since September.  The CDPP program has planned a 
tobacco cessation media campaign (TV and billboard) that will run in January, which 
includes the 1-800-Quit-Now cessation resource.  Staff also set up a GetHealthyWashoe 
YouTube channel and has posted their first video.  The video is the “Smoking Cessation 
Tips” ad that will be running in January and can be viewed at: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC55V1rUKSEDbXT3Ws3SRyMA 

f. Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health (MCAH) – FIMR staff conducted data
abstraction on 21 cases in the fourth quarter of CY 2014. The next Case Review Team is
scheduled for January 21, 2015.

The MCH clinic received two referrals on elevated blood lead levels in the last two 
months and has provided education to the families regarding ways to reduce a child’s 
exposure to lead and the need for medical follow. 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC55V1rUKSEDbXT3Ws3SRyMA


Subject: CCHS Report for January 2015 
Date: January 22, 2015 
Page 4 of 4 

Jan Houk will be attending the Association of Maternal and Child Health (AMCHP) 
conference in January 2015. 

g. Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children (WIC) –
Staff prepared for and implemented the final phase to change all women and children
over age 2 from whole and 2% milk to 1% and fat free milk. This required educating all
WIC clients and planning with each how much milk to buy both before and after the
mandated change date of January 1, 2015.



DIVISION DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  January 22, 2015 

DATE: December 5, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Robert O. Sack, Division Director, Environmental Health Services (EHS) 
775-328-2644; bsack@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: EHS Division Update, Program Updates - Food, Land Development, UST/LUST, 
Vector-Borne Disease and EHS Inspections / Permits / Plan Review. 

DIVISION UPDATE 

• An Environmental Health Specialist Trainee I began employment January 5.  An Office Assistant II
joined our Division on January 12.

PROGRAM UPDATES 

Food 

• There were 41 Special Event inspections completed in December of 2014 which set a record for
the month surpassing last year’s record of 35.  The increase is due to a growing number of
holiday craft fairs that are getting larger and extending the craft fair season into mid-December.

Land Development 

• Two field staff rotated into the program and began training in the residential well and septic areas
of Land Development.

• An intermittent hourly Office Assistant I has been hired to assist in the Land Development
Program.  Their primary role will be to continue and complete the electronic transfer of program
records into our existing Mapping Database.

UST/LUST Program 

• The program began training a new field staff member.  It is the first time the program has been
fully staffed since July 2014.

• WCHD representatives and NDEP representatives are working on moving forward with an
electronic filing storage system for all UST/LUST cases.

Vector-Borne Disease 

• Staff is updating our Bed Bug brochure with completion anticipated by the end of the month.
These brochures are utilized by Environmental Health staff to provide information to citizens in
the office and field when performing hotel/motel as well as other inspections.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
775-328-2434   I   Fax: 775-328-6176   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada   |   Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 19.C

mailto:bsack@washoecounty.us


EHS Division Director Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  January 22, 2015 
Page 2 of 2

• The annual report for the General National Pollution Discharge Elimination System is due the
middle of January.  This report required by NDEP contains all the pesticides that were used by
our Program this past year.  The detailed comprehensive report includes the location of each
treatment, GPS points, mosquito larvae and/or adults detected, predators present and conditions
of the body of water.

• Staff has been diligent in reviewing 12 Community Development projects and 10 Construction
Plans received within the past two weeks, including inspections on current construction projects.

EHS 2014 Inspections/Permits/Plan Review 

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC YTD AVG 
Child Care 6 3 7 13 10 27 25 14 25 16 7 12 165 14 
Complaints 70 74 68 96 101 97 139 117 128 78 52 61 1,081 90 
Food 499 312 452 388 475 364 288 420 429 458 510 164 4,759 397 
General 63 67 118 62 383 134 190 290 101 113 174 118 1,813 151 
Plan Review (Commercial) 14 3 4 3 14 14 4 3 10 31 20 22 138 12 
Plan Review (Residential Septic) 21 29 32 39 41 47 46 39 37 39 32 34 436 36 
Residential Septic Inspections 22 29 37 45 33 74 44 27 43 49 43 37 483 40 
Temporary Food/Special Events 28 33 62 84 132 420 337 765 271 183 110 41 2,466 206 
Well Permits 11 0 5 6 6 15 12 12 7 13 22 26 135 11 
Waste Management 12 20 29 9 12 21 13 13 13 4 9 27 182 15 

  TOTAL 746 570 814 745 1,207 1,209 1,098 1,700 1,064   984   979 542 11,658 972 
* General Inspections Include:  Invasive Body Decorations; Mobile Homes/RVs; Public Accommodations; Pools;

Spas; RV Dump Stations; and Sewage/Wastewater Pumping.



DIVISON DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: January 22, 2015 

DATE: January 12, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Randall Todd, DrPH, EPHP Director 
775-328-2443, rtodd@washoecounty.us 

Subject: Program Updates for Communicable Disease, Public Health Preparedness, and 
Emergency Medical Services 

Communicable Disease - 

Pertussis - CD staff have continued to investigate pertussis cases. In 2014, 57 cases were 
reported and investigated in comparison to 22 cases in 2013; a 159% increase.  

Ebola - CD staff members continued actively monitoring two travelers from Mali and Liberia. 
As of January 9th, staff completed monitoring for three individuals and two are pending, and will 
be finished on January 10. None have developed symptoms.  

Enterovirus D68 – Other than the first case of EVD68 reported on December 10th, no additional 
cases have been reported.   

Influenza – As of week #53 (ending 1/3/15), the percentage of patients seen with ILI in Washoe 
County was 6%. P&I data are still not available due to technical problems occurring at the State. 
During week #52, the percentage of patients seen nationally with ILI was 5.9%. As of week #53, 
438 lab-confirmed influenza cases have been reported. Of these 483 cases, 389 (89%) were 
influenza A and 37 (8%) were influenza B and 12 (3%) were unknown type. Sixty-two cases 
(14.2%) were hospitalized and there have been three (0.7%) influenza-related deaths. The 
reported ILI percentage and lab-confirmed cases in this week is the highest in comparison with 
the same period during past four seasons.  

2013 Communicable Disease Summary and 2013 Community-wide Antibiogram – CD staff 
have completed 2013 CD Summary with contributions from EHS, CCHS divisions and now this 
product has been published online. Staff have completed the 2013 Community-wide antibiogram 
with support from local hospitals and this will be published once the online version is completed 
by DSS. Both publications have been well received by local medical community.   

EPIDEMIOLOGY AND PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
EPHP Office: 775-326-6055   I   Fax: 775-325-8130   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 19.D



Subject: EPHP Staff Report 
Date: January 22, 2015 
Page 2 of 4 

Public Health Preparedness – 

Staff applied for Ebola support funding through the State to CDC. If successful, this grant would 
provide the Health District with funding to update the Ebola response plan as CDC guidance 
changes. Also included would be funds to conduct active/direct active monitoring of persons returning 
to or visiting Washoe County who have been have been exposed or potentially exposed to Ebola 
Virus Disease. 

The PHP program conducted a Tabletop exercise on December 11th in which Private POD 
Partners tested their plans in response to a pneumonic plague scenario.  An After Action Report/ 
Improvement Plan identified both strengths and areas for improvement.  A primary strength 
identified by the exercise was the opportunity for networking among all partners in relation to a 
“dry” POD scenario in which medication would be dispensed as opposed to a “wet” POD in 
which vaccine is administered.  A major strength identified by the exercise was the need for 
more law enforcement engagement and collaboration. 

WCHD’s Medical Reserve Corps (MRC) Volunteer Program Coordinator and an MRC volunteer 
participated in the pneumonic plague Tabletop Exercise. This was an opportunity to assess how 
MRC volunteers may be deployed and utilized for this public health emergency.  The exercise 
was conducted by the WCHD. 

On January 7, 2014 the MRC Coordinator attended a meeting of the Northern Nevada 
Organization of Volunteers Active in Disasters (NNVOAD).  NNVOAD is in the process of 
restructuring and selecting a new chairperson and vice chairperson. 

The latest edition of the MRC Newsletter was recently completed and disseminated to all MRC 
volunteers and WCHD personnel.  

PHP staff continued participation in the County’s Hazard Mitigation process to provide 
information on the Terrorism section as it related to bioterrorism.  Furthermore, PHP staff 
collaborated with Epi staff to write the Infectious Disease section of the Hazard Mitigation 
Profile for the County.   

PHP staff, in collaboration with CCHS staff, provided two of six Fire Vaccination 
Administration Trainings in January 2015 to continue training efforts to ensure all local 
firefighters are trained to assist in providing vaccinations in the event of a public health 
emergency such as pandemic influenza or smallpox.  

EMS Manager conducted a tabletop exercise with Hearthstone of Northern Nevada.  Hearthstone is 
seeking Joint Commission certification and exercise participation in a component of that.   



Subject: EPHP Staff Report 
Date: January 22, 2015 
Page 3 of 4 

EMS - 

EMS staff is working to complete the final draft of the first quarterly EMS data report of FY 
14/15. This document includes statistical analyses of the Reno Fire Department, Sparks Fire 
Department, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and REMSA. An initial draft of this 
report was presented to the EMS Advisory Board on December 4, 2014. As the EMS Program 
continues to gather and report data, it is anticipated that the data findings will be utilized for 
performance improvements with the EMS system in Washoe County.  

EMS staff met with the Washoe County EMS Field Representative from Nevada’s Division of 
Public and Behavioral Health (DPBH). Previously, a minimal partnership existed between the 
State Office of Emergency Medical Services and EMS staff at the WCHD. Several notable 
outcomes resulted from the meeting and EMS staff will now meet quarterly with representatives 
from the DPBH to ensure better cross-communication.  

EMS staff is currently revising Multi-Casualty Incident Plan Annex to include the Mutual Aid 
Evacuation Annex (MAEA) and the development of the Family Assistance Center (FAC) Annex.  
Feedback from the MAEA workshop held in December 2014 is being utilized. EMS staff is 
collaborating with regional partners to determine if changing the evacuation process to include 
the use of the Disaster Management Systems (DMS) hospital evacuation tags is a needed 
enhancement during this year’s revisions. Once all revisions are complete, the plan will be 
presented to the DBOH for possible approval.  The FAC Annex was requested by healthcare 
partners to ensure coordination and communication after the initial incident moves into a secondary 
response.   

EMS staff determined that it is more efficient to provide REMSA’s response percentages and 
statistics on a monthly basis rather than reporting such information only in the annual 
Compliance Report. Beginning in January, the Board will receive EMS staff’s calculations on a 
monthly basis.  The calculations are based on the data pulled from REMSA’s Online Compliance 
Utility (OCU). Below are the compliance percentages per zone as well as the 90th percentile 
response for each zone. 

REMSA Response Compliance 
FY 2014 -2015 



Subject: EPHP Staff Report 
Date: January 22, 2015 
Page 4 of 4 

REMSA 90th Percentile Response 

*There were 5 or less calls per month in Zone D, therefore a statistically meaningful 90th 

percentile analysis cannot be conducted. However, no calls in Zone D exceeded the 30:59 time 
requirement.  



DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: January 22, 2015 

DATE: January 12, 2015 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
(775) 328-2416, kdick@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: District Health Officer Report - Community Health Needs Assessment, Truckee 
Meadows Healthy Communities Conference, Fundamental Review, Other Events & 
Activities and Health District Media Contacts. 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Community Health Needs Assessment 

The Community Health Needs Assessment was completed and is posted on the Health District 
website as well as the websites of Renown Health and Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities. The 
Executive Summary was printed and distributed to the participants of the Truckee Meadows Healthy 
Communities Conference. (Fundamental Review Item 14) 

Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities Conference 

The Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities Conference was held at the 4th floor Ballroom of the Joe 
Crowley Student Union at UNR on January 8.  First Lady Kathleen Sandoval served as Honorary 
Chair for the event.  The conference featured speakers from the Build Healthy Places Network, 
Stanford School of Medicine and Packard Children’s Hospital, the Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco, Local Initiatives Support Corporation (LISC), Clearinghouse CDFI, RTC, WCSD, 
Renown Health, N. Nevada Medical Center, St. Mary’s, Nevada Business Group on Health, the 
Health District, and the Cities of Reno and Sparks. 

Nearly 250 people attended the event, which provided information on the health status of the 
community, a focused discussion of the 89502 zip-code area, health disparities, approaches to 
becoming a healthy community, policy, finance, the built environment, education, and collective 
impact. 

The conference engaged participants in an exercise to discuss possible projects to address needs in the 
89502 zip code area.  The plan is to further engage the wide variety of participants and organizations 
in project implementation in 89502 and the development of a Community Health Improvement Plan. 

Fundamental Review 

Progress continues: 

OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 
1001 East Ninth Street   I   P.O. Box 11130   I   Reno, Nevada 89520 
ODHO Phone: 775-328-2416   I   Fax: 775-328-3752   I   washoecounty.us/health 
Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 19.E



Subject: ODHO Report 
Date: January 22, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 
 

• The Health District is proceeding with the process to institute fees for services for which 
the Health District did not previously conduct cost-recovery.  These fees will be 
workshopped in February.(Fundamental Review Item 5) 

• A Public Health Nurse position in the ODHO has been reclassified to Director of 
Programs and Projects.  The position has been posted for recruitment on the HR website. 
The application period closes January 26.  The position will play a lead role in the 
Community Health Improvement Plan development and coordinating community 
partnerships/collaborations.  The position will also support the Health District QI and 
Performance Management Initiatives.  (Fundamental Review Items 8, 19, and 20) 

• The Community Health Needs Assessment was completed.  (Fundamental Review Item 
14) 

The current dashboard on progress implementing of the Fundamental Review recommendations 
implementation is attached. 

Other Events and Activities 
 
I held a General Staff Meeting on January 6.  These meetings are scheduled quarterly. 
 
I met with the Division Directors/Supervisors on January 7 and with Division Directors on January 
21.  I conduct individual meetings with the Division Directors and Communication Manager on a bi-
weekly schedule.  My monthly meeting with the County Manager occurred on January 7. 
 
I participated at the Washoe County Board of County Commissioners Strategic Planning retreat held 
on January 9, and the County Department Heads strategic planning meeting on January 14. 
 
Daniel Inouye attended the RTC Blue Ribbon Committee on Transit on my behalf on January 15. 
 
I attended the REMSA Board Meeting on January 16. 
 
I attended the Carson City Health and Human Services Robert Wood Johnson Foundation Grant 
Cross Jurisdictional Sharing Meeting on January 16. 
 
I continue to serve as President of HomeFree Nevada / EnergyFit Nevada, the not-for-profit Home 
Performance with Energy Star Provider for the State of Nevada.  
  



Subject: ODHO Report 
Date: January 22, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 
 

Health District Media Contacts: December 9, 2014 - January 13, 2015 
DATE MEDIA REPORTER STORY 

    
1/13/2015 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Jennifer Burton 

Community Health Needs Assessment - Health 
Officer Kevin Dick 

1/12/2015 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Jennifer Burton Influenza - Ulibarri 

1/8/2015 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Kristen Remington 
Healthy Communities Conference - Health 
Officer Kevin Dick 

1/6/2015 KKOH Radio - 780 AM Ross Mitchell Burn Code - Inouye 

1/5/2015 Reno Gazette Journal Marcella Corona Burn Code - Inouye 

1/2/2015 UNIVISION Laura Calzada Burn Code and Inversions - Inouye, Wright 

1/2/2015 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Landon Miller Burn Code and Inversions - Inouye, Petersen 

12/31/2014 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Amanda Sanchez Influenza Vaccine and Eggs - Ulibarri 

12/30/2014 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Angie Woods 
The Road Ahead/Healthy Communities - 
Health Officer Kevin Dick 

12/30/2014 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Terri Russell Influenza - Ulibarri 

12/30/2014 UNIVISION Laura Calzada Hypothermia - Ulibarri 

12/29/2014 UNIVISION Laura Calzada Burn Code - Inouye 

12/22/2014 UNIVISION Ivet Contreras Listeria - Paulson 

12/17/2014 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno Joe Hart Rodents - Ulibarri 

12/17/2014 KRNV CH4 - NBC Reno Terri Lewis Influenza - Shore 

12/15/2014 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Jennifer Burton Influenza - Health Officer Kevin Dick 

12/11/2014 UNIVISION Ivet Contreras EV-D68 - Ulibarri 

12/10/2014 KKOH Radio - 780 AM Ross Mitchell Burn Code -  Inouye 

12/10/2014 Reno Gazette Journal Marcella Corona Burn Code - Schnieder 

12/9/2014 KOLO CH8 - ABC Reno Paul Harris Influenza - Kutz, Paulson, Ulibarri 

    Press Releases/Media 
Advisories/Editorials 

  

    1/13/2015 Press Release PIO Ulibarri Community Health Needs Assessment 

1/6/2015 Media Advisory PIO Ulibarri Red Burn Code Rescinded 

1/1/2015 Media Advisory PIO Ulibarri Red Burn Code Issued 

12/29/2015 Media Advisory PIO Ulibarri Red Burn Code Rescinded 

12/10/2014 Media Advisory PIO Ulibarri Red Burn Code Rescinded 

     
 



1/13/2015

Legend:

Status Goal
1 Place WIC organizationally where it is most closely aligned with similar functions

a. WIC moved to CCHS effective 1/21/14
2

a. Design an orientation program and compile a draft manual
3 Strengthen customer focus, exploring the potential for user groups to share consumer viewpoints

a. Land development user group established
4 Critically examine clinic appointment scheduling from a patient access perspective

a. Staffing IZ five days a week, accept IZ walk ins on a limited basis
b. Extended IZ hours established.  Consider opportunities and costs for weekend clinical services
c Staffing Vital Statistics five days a week
d Discussion has begun with Interactive Voice Response software companies

5 Update fee schedules and billing processes for all clinical and environmental services
a. Third-party billing service began July 1, 2014
b. Identify costs for permits and services that could be included in fee schedules/propose 
c. Identify costs for regulatory programs that could be included in fee schedules/propose 
d. Identify community and clinical services for which reimbursement is available/bill

6 Explore tiered level of services for Environmental Health programs and inspections

Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

Not Recommended

Complete
Underway

Underway - Regulatory, Budget, Policy Analysis or Issue Resolution Necessary or in Process
Underway but Progress Stalled or Delayed

Not Yet Underway - No Changes Necessary
Parking Lot

January 13, 2015

Develop a DBOH orientation manual and program



Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

1/13/2015 2

a. Consider the desire & support for this type of tiered structure and this item within the larger context
7 Participate in the business process analysis across all building permitting in the county

a. ILA and contract with Accela signed.  16-month implementation proceeding.
8 Develop infrastructure to support the District Health Officer

a. The Office of the District Health Officer was established on July 1, 2014
9

a. Time coding in EHS has been expanded, AQM timecoding is underway. CCHS timestudy occuring.
10

a. A proposed schedule approved on June 26, 2014 by DBOH.  Pilot analysis of Administration completed.
11 Perform assessment of needed administrative and fiscal staffing to increase efficiencies

a. Will be performed in conjunction with program const analysis.  See 10a
12 Demonstrate a concerted effort among all parties to address tensions regarding overhead/direct costs

a. Additional General Fund transfer provided in FY 15 adopted budget to support unrecoverable indirect costs.
13

a.
b. Assess changes in service levels and program alignment with respect to CHA CHIP, SP or funding

14 Conduct a CHA in concert with current partner organizations
a. Complete.

15 Develop metrics for organizational success and improved community health
a. In FY15, continue to identify metrics that help to manage programs and resources and tell our story

16 Continue current collaborative action plan to resolve REMSA oversight issues
a. Franchise Agreement approved, Regional EMS Oversight Program and Advisory Board estblished.

17
a.
b.

18
a. Completed January 16, 2014.  Determine future schedule to repeat

19 Undertake an organizational strategic plan to set forth key Health District goals and objectives 
a. Conduct a strategic planning initiative following the completion of the CHA and a CHIP

20
a. Use results of program cost analysis, performance metrics and SP to develop & implement performance mgmt. system

21
a. This is not a recommendation for staff action

Implement time coding for employees

Perform cost analysis of all programs

Align programs and services with public demand

Maintain current levels of local and state financial support

Shifted home visiting resources to provide additional clinical services on June 1, 2014

Action on this recommendation is captured under Recommendation 12 above
Advocate sustaining or enhancing funding through State agencies

Conduct a governance assessment utilizing NALBOH criteria

Implement a performance management system

Consider alternative governance structures



Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

1/13/2015 3

22 Take a greater leadership role to enhance the strong current State/Local collaboration
a.
b. Seek direction from DBOH on a greater leadership role

23 Develop an organizational culture to support quality by taking visible leadership steps
a. Cross-Divisional Q-Team established and Div. QI projects conducted. Additional mgmt. training completed.

24
a. Seek DBOH direction on this recommendation once the CHA, CHIP and the SP are completed

DBOH - District Board of Health
NALBOH - National Association of Local Boards of Health

Acronyms: IZ - Immunizations

SP - Strategic Plan
QI - Quality Improvement

Seek Public Health Accreditation Board accreditation

Health District efforts to focus on internal and local issues

ILA - Interlocal Agreement
CHA - Community Health Assessment
CHIP - Community Health Improvement Plan


	Agenda
	6. Approval of Draft Minutes
	December 18, 2014

	8. Proclamations
	A. National Radon Action Month
	B. National Heart Month

	9. Consent Agenda
	A. Air Quality Management
	a. Alston Construction
	Staff Report 

	b. F&P Construction
	Staff Report

	c. NITU Arlington Gas
	Staff Report


	B. Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements
	1.TMFPD pilot Program
	Staff Report

	2. Position abolishment
	Staff Report

	3. Subgrant Award
	Staff Report



	10. REMSA Board of Directors Introduction
	11. REMSA Board of Directors
	Staff Report

	12. REMSA
	Reports

	13. REMSA Franchise Compliance Report
	Staff Report

	14. DBOH member appointment
	Staff Report

	15. Community Health Needs Assessment
	Staff Report

	16. Financial Review
	Staff Report

	17. Benchmarking Statistics
	Staff Report 

	18. Nevada Legislative Session Report
	Staff Report

	19. Staff Reports and Program Updates
	A. AQM
	Staff Report

	B. CCHS
	Staff Report

	C. EHS
	Staff Report

	D. EPHP
	Staff Report

	E. ODHO
	Staff Report





